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AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Derier B Mvriners,

Wi e plewied o enclosed hesesith five copeey of the draft firancisl atements of Firsl Women
Bank Limnited [“PWBL" or “the Bask®) for the e evaled December 11, 3004 togeiher with our drafl
nudi repent theresn duly inffialed by un for idend fication purpodsy. 'We shall be plessed i sign our
el repert B My prebent of imesdled farm after he drafl Mnancial Aslemesty Fuve bess appnoved
vy the Baard of Directors (e Baard) and ugned by the periom, Juthorized 1o do u in this iegard s
EpECified i e CTion 14i2 i} of Bankieg Compardes Ordinance, 1963 and upon receipd of the Following

B The detaily of sther information that will be published slong with the fsancial suatements lor
ihe purpoie ol our revidw im tevme of the reguirements of international Sandard on Aaxditing
A ) TI0 Bevied): "The Auditer's Bespontbil ities Redatng to Other Information™

b The Boand®s resolution s réspect af the: ilems listed In Aassaare 'A° of his letter
€. Infarmation and confirnations Sentloned b anngaume ‘87 of this letier,

We would Like 1o advise the Soaed thal uslels we §ign our sudil report, these deafy financial
Lrlemerly ghall femann and be desmed w-aacited

feelors arw the matiess thal vor vkl Like (o Brisg into aliention of | he Bawd

1. RESPOMSISILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT AND AUDITORS IN RELATION TO THE FINANCLAL
STATEMENTS

The rewpodbiliten of e independest sudion & & il evemication of Pl
staternenits afe stipulsted in section 249 of the Companies Act, 2017, Banking Companies
Grdinarce, 1962 and Intemnational Standards on Auiting. While the auditors are responsibie
fior Tarming end sapreyving thelr opinken on the financisl itatements, the rmpomibiity Tor
preparation of such Mnsncisl salerrets i primaly that of the Cospany's managerenl,
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The management’s resporsitilities include the maintenance of sdeguate accounting records
and internal controls, the selection and applicetion of accounting policies, safeguarding of
the ssets of the Compamy and prevention and detection of frauds snd lrregularities, The
st of Mnancial stabements does not relleve the management af Ity responibilities.

-3 MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT (MCR) OF STATE BAMK OF PAKISTAN AMD MATERIAL
UNCERTAINITY RCLATED TO GOING CONCERM

Being & public sector bank, State Bank of Pakistan (58P, belng the repudator, had prescribed
& rewised MCR imit for the Bank in Jaruary 2004, wherebsy the Bank is required to maintain
minbmum pald-up capital (net of lovses) of Re. 3 billion and capltal adequacy ratio of 15% at
all the times. The waid limit (o remadn enforoed Tl the vime the: Bank remaing & public secion
entity. Moreover, the Bank b nol sllowed to pay dividend and nesds to maintain the per
party exposure limit at S0% of the prescribed prudential requiations timit until its paid-up
capital and reiervies Freaches B, & billion,

At December 31, 1024, the Banks MCR (representing paid up capital net of accumulated
Ionses) wias Re. 2.17 billion. 'We have been informed by the management that the Bank has
already written to the Ministry of Finance (WoF) for the injection of the additional requisite
capital. We abo undertand that S0P has also been Informed about the above request.

We have been further informed by the management that the Bank's management and the
Board i fully confident that the SBP and Mol will extend the required lNnancisl support for
meeting the capital reguirements, which & also evident from the fact that histerically the
Gowernment of Pakivtan (GoP) ot thoes injected capital in the Bank wheneooer there wat a

shortfall.

Furthermire, the GoP vie the MoF, Bank's major shareholder, holding 82.64% of the Bank’s
equity, has explained that in case any support would be required by the Bank to enable it to
continee a3 going concern, the same would be extended throogh policy and other
intervention.

We take this opportunity to draw sttention to BSD chrculsr Mo, 19 of 2008 of 58P which
mentions that “Amy Bank /OF that lakls to meet the minkmum paid up capital requirement or
CAR within the stipulated period shall render itwelf lable to the foliowing actions:

i. Mmposition of yuch restrictions on its business including restrictions on acceptance of
deposits and (ending as may be deemed it by the 58P,

i, De-scheduling of ihe Bank, thersby converting it into A non-scheduled bank.

i, Cancellation of the banking license if the SBP believes that the Bank is not in a position

Lo mest the minimom paid up capital reguirermsnt or CAR,
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W e been intormed by the management that ro sdvere regulstory st e been ahen
by SAP i Ehis remasd,

Thewe everis o corxlitions cant significast doutd on the enbity' s sbility o contimee as 8 going
cordirr, Hineredd, il pid managenen] semmment, the Bank will be able 1= have condimed
ipgort feom MoF to meet the liguidity constiaiets ncluding regulatary thheihold of WCR
thersty meeting all 15 abligations in normal corle of buainess. Accoedingly, the
Franagemenl M prepared fimancial siatenenty for the yeur snded December 11, 200 on &
iwing concern Beil. We have inchided & “matenial sncerainty relating 1o going conoem”
peragraph in oor sl Feport in (his respel whevsss, our opinion |5 not medified @ thia
regarTL

PRIVATIZATION STATUS OF Thel RAMK

The Miristry of Prisatization siated that the Cabinst Comimities on Privalostion (CCoP), o
ity mesting: haid o October 31, 3018, haed placed the Firit Women Bank Limited [FWBLI on
the Active Privatization Program, duly rt®ied by the Federsl Cabingt on Mowemriber 1, 2008
heoardingly, the Privalimaiion Comemuses ued & Reguest for Fropolal (RFF) on October
18, 2019, inviting Techmical and Financial Propoasly. After completing he technical asd
Finamcisl evalusiion of the b, the comortium compriing Wiy Brdge Facinr & Watienal
aris of Pakistan wan spposnted ad ihe Fiaencinl Advier for the privid fzation of PAWEL w5tk
the aporowal of Board of the Privatization Coswmhsion Dosed on December 17, 1OO9.
Areondingly, Fissecisl Advisory Seivices Agreement (FASA] was sigred on Jasusry 17, 1020,

Tow Msitry of Frvwtization hather nosed thet the dur dlligescs repor of th lenk was
Hnadimed n Jurse 2020 and the Cabine| Committes on Privatization approved the Transsction
Structure on Aapst 11, 2030, However, the privatizabion of the Bank & ol actlve snd
pimding B3 al Feporting daie.

IMPLEMENTATION OF IFRS § FINAWCIAL METRUMENTS"
Adoption of medifsed retrospect ive approsch

The State Bank of Pakistan (the SBP) via BPRD ciroular oo, 4 deted October 21, 1019, had
previessly prescribed Januany 01, 2621, e the effective daie for implementation of IFEG 9
isndl theen dielerred the imphessnntal o of IFES 9 Tinancial Instrumenty’ 10 sdcounting period
begirming on of after Jenasy 01, XIL Howeeer, kesolg In view Uhe ndostry
repreusntatinm, the SBP thrmagh it BPED circular ietter no. O7 dated Agril 11, 2023, revised
the sffertive date for implesentation of FRS 9w Sesuary 01, 2024, for OFh and baedks.
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The Hark has adopted mdifaed ot rowsective appraach lor implemesiabion of IFRS 9. A pear
ihe redquisernenty of IFRS %, “sntity sdopting IFRS % dees not need 1o restste priar penods
o] #hall recognise any difference between Lhe previus: Carmying BMouUnts and Che carying
amounts determined mt per IS ¥ af the brginnleg of the anmaal reporting period i the
CpenEg unapproprated profit (oF olber comporend of eguity, &3 appropeiste] of the srval
repartied period. Accordingly, the Bank has recognised the defterence in the opening sguty
s ot January 07, 3024, The detailed dinclosses nelating to the impacts of sdoption of IFRS
W hve Bedn ghven innole 3.1 B0 the sneesed Nnancial viabements.

Exemptions / clarifications sought fram the State Bank of Paiisten

We would ke to hghlight that at the time of implementation of IFRS ¥, the Banki in the
irchmery hasd icbentifiod ceriain accounting malbmn which requined clacfications |/ guidsnce
From the SBP. The SBP lssued BPRD circslar better mo. 16 dated July 19, 2024, and provided
ceriam relaxations in timelines ol e SB9°y IFRS O application betiructiom to address most
of the matters raied by thie banks in the industry with & dieciion io prawre compliance by
Thie fevind iired ey

Sulmeguently, the barky reguested for furiber relasslion bor cevlain malters owing o ihe
practacal Hirilatiom being faced for the implementation of 1hess FRS 9 requanements. The
ey maltern which were Lshen up with the BIP for relasation o rimelines by the Danking
indhastry inclided ithe folbowing: x

o recognition of Fedns on laani and sdvances, Inveitmients #ic. uting EfMective interest
Rate (FW

o peverue recognition on klamic inancing traniactions,

o gocounting for moditication af |aans dee (o restracturing ¢ rescheduling: and

*  mabntessnce of genersl prosduion pver snd abowe The reguirenenty of IFRS 9.

In this regard, & mesting wes held on December 04, 2004, which wes Bisaded by the
repreasntatives of the 5AP, Pakintan Basks’ Avocistion (PRAJ, bhanis ahd certain sudit firm
i whicf Ehrie st wore dicussed smd dellber slosd upos siTh the e phrsentat el of e
P The mirdes al the mesting wee ciculaied @ the banking indisley by BEA a whigh
certmin action plam were agreed by the hanking industry wilth the SEP along =itk & regest
i the 58P to comider the banks' reguetts for providing further Lime o implemneni thele
matters from yeer 205 and onwarts. The representative of the SIP agreed thal the
recantideration requasty for ey Woma will bo sewn in genoval, on & case-lo-caoe bath for
Eerimin mallers and based on the Bank’s plan fof Fnplemeniation. in a recent develogment,
the 58P vide BFRD circular leiter o, 0 of 1025 deted Jemuary 31, 1005, kas Baved Che
followireg clasilications / relassiions:
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o  modification socounting =il be applied retrmpectively on am madehed on ar after
Junuary 00, 2000,

« fimsncial imtitutions see pesmitted (o maintain genersl ressives [/ prostibons ovel s
absow the ICL, warked out for Sage 1 and Stage 1. up to December 11, B2&;

«  Blamic Bankong inslitulions (IBk) sre aliowed bo follow applicable |siamic Financisl
Accounting Standand for Morabata and |jarah and contie the existing accounting
methodology on other ilamic products wtil usnce of furthes inatruction in this regand,
Eraagh iy sen sdvised te dhcioe the mpact, n nobey to the firancisl statements, bad
IFRS ¥ bewen adopted i i snbirely, Sed

¢ e treabment of charity whould be in line with the existing practices = defined In tte
BB ietructions s thosdd rod b recogniteed | come,

The Bamk nas teken measures for the alore-rmentionsd matters i line wath the nelaoations
iowided by the S&P.

Furits, e SAP focigh ity etter bo, IWPRDRPD 20656/ 29 deted fonuary 13, 300%, isued
B e PR, has directed mplemeniation of IFRS 9 reguiremends. for falr valustion of stalf
nd subsidiied iotrs and modification sccounting in the books of the financial ingtititions.
Accosdingly, 1he Bank has incorpornted the effects of fair valuslitn of el and wibasied
ioarm mnd the madification accounting n the apnewrd finascial satements of the Rank for
the yeir enided December 31, 2004,

W recommend that the feck dhoubd teke appropriste meause fo comply with the
reguiremariy of IFRS % with i ihe releded / o Dened Dmed) el ieciled by the SDF,

Furthermere, @ direcied by Sate Bank of Fakisian | 58P ) vide i3 BPRD Circulse Mo, OF of
1023 aated 11 dpril 1071, 1o shiure complinnos with the reguirementy of IFRS 9, the Basi iy
required 1o et wp robust povernance Fremework requiting rish masagemerd, firence,
buniness, credit disk, inleemal sl and IT fonctioms. During fhe coune of ihe s, we
abasresd the lollowing ares thal nesd signilicant Fmprovemests in oided o meke soe
compiiance with IFISS 9 and the applications intructions s ssusd by S89 vide ity BPRD Circular
Mo, OF of 1071 dated 11 Aprd 2001,

Trawming and development

impiementing FHRE ¥ for the fint time seomalialey comprehemive training for the Bank's
peryosnel pcross muliiple domais. The ST mual grsp e new clasificalion sed
messremeni of fnancial msinements, slong with e shift to @0 sspecied oredit o JBCL
model for mgalresent. Trainicg & sl saential lor s ing date sad wisdsting Tysteem o
WO BT AR S PR
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B0 Ebrahim
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During our inguines we noted that the Bink i is the process of providing training reganding
the enderitandeng of the reguinements of [FRS 5. We strongly recommend the Bank organoe
meﬂm“mplmwﬂmmuﬂnr
wnd itx nissnoeL

Intermal Controb

A drected by 5B vide it OSED Clirular Ma. 07 of 1014 intemal coatrols cwer fimancial
reporting Includes dscumpnzation of the contrel environment at entity level 2o well a3 the
woping exerchie 1o identifly tgrdieast stcount esd o laiures snd mapplag (e procesee,
franc lal reporting riaky and Filigslig controly st sclivity Lt

Busing our auii? procedures, we could not otaerve any inftasce where rivls related fo the
implamentation of FRS 9, of other fimancial reparting riska and mitigating controls, were
identified and docurmented by the inlesmal controli department in the context of finencial
Teporting,

gl MERSgETenl

Lindisr [FRS 9, an eatity must classify financial msets for meaarenent al amortized oo, fair
value theough other compretemtve income (FYOCH, of fair value through profit or lom
{FYPL). This claneification (s based on two criteria: the entitys burinews moded for mansging
thee fimancisl sasets mnd the comtrectual cash flow characteristics af Uhe financisl assel,

Tha Bark condists & porifalis saesement tn delsrrming the ssenuss of Fresslment whilie
cosmidering 1L everall portfolis and sverspe reterns. Howeesr, 1t does not perform the
Earirersy model snesiment, gnd cavh Aow charecteristion Loet 5 adendified sbews 10 evaliais
i e Natune s classification of the invesiments wnder RS 5,

Dearing our pudit proceduires, we observed that the Bank directly classifies i3 invest menis
m-mm:luhm«-ﬂnmhmmmuﬂu
oy Fegiaiermend of the standid
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COMVERSION OF CONVENTIONAL BANKING INTO ISLAMIC RAMNKING

8P through its Circular Mo, IWPD 0 of 2004 dated June 28,2014, direcied thal In punuance
of 5BP Vison 2018 and 1o faciitate banks i (helr comenion from cosventicnal to hlamic by
Becember 2027, 58P has developed broad guiding parameters which will heip bards to devise
thelr man coreeriion plans. Accordingly, baeky may comider lollowing brosd paramitars 10
PrEpane T CEnwaTiinn phun:

«  Winion and Erategy

= Govomance stristure

«  Basiness corweriion milestords and Dmelings (miernal mibedones lor coeerion of
assots, deponity, fmancing, |mvostreenty, syndicaled [ramactiors and nos-funded
partfobio snd branches, eic,

« Gap saslysh with rewect Io policies, prodects and serviors, Infrsstructural
pequirpments, human rewources, ientification of ases/chablenges, potentisl arves Lo
wirk on i schiees Larpet ol comeemian, oo,

«  Oneboarding employess of the bars snd drategy for their training and capacity buildmg

« Commuracation plen with stakeboigery {internal snd exiernall

& Customes fecititation [pwareness creation and informsation sharing with bank"s cuslomen
angl pomplasns handling mecharfmj

Further irstructed that the banks may approach iilamic Fisance Poticy Departmend, 5872 for
further guldsnce on the subject,

We recommend thie Baard 1o adhere weth he fegurements regarding conweriion from
mwwmm-mmmmmnw.

PROMULGATION OF STATE-OWMED PNTERPRISES (GOVERMANCE AND OPERATIONS) ALT,
M1l

Grate-Ownee Enterprnes (Governarce and Operations) Al, 201) was promeigated on
February 1, MJMFMMWthmmmHM
-wnmmmdhmmmwmmw
mmuwm.mmmwmm:.m
under Lhe Lt of the liamic Republic of Pekistan, Federsl Government, through the Miniilry
of Finance, holds !I-Hmﬁpﬂﬁhlhmmuhhﬂuinﬂm
wm,mﬂwmﬂwmmi Circular
13/2014 dated Octobes 18, 2024 directed the Hate-Cwred [nterpriam 1o prepare '
Pnancial staterments in sccordance wilh international Financial Reporting Slandardh (RS
Mnlwdﬂﬂlﬂ!ﬂhmﬂﬂﬂm#mﬂ_
revquirerments of the Act sccordingly.

Page - 7
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We recomvmend the Board bo sdbere ath The requerements of the Act 1f the privatizaton of
the Barnk doet nol materialie within the slpdated lme provided sy mentionsd i the
Circular.

T EXPOSURE DN LOWKS AND ADVARCES

] Man-perfodming lom

At December 11, 2024, the non-performing baans (MPLs| and sdvances of the Bank amourted
to As. 1,000 14 million. HPLS to gross sdvances ratio of the Bank works oul tn be 20.95
percent. If the paptsures gusranised by the GoP are pxciuded from LoLsl sdeanies her [he
percentape of HPLS 1o advances works cut 1o Be 39,68 peroent.

In accordance with the reguiremests of the Prudentis] Begulatiors issued by the SBF, Lhe
Bacik holds & provision of K 7, 98805 million st o1 Decersber 11, H024 sgainel the above
relprred NP5 which incicaT=d provissoning (o WPLs covernge of 99,46 pescent aa of December
T, 024

i addition 1o the time-based Criloris for HPL classalication and priyilonisg, Che Prudestial
Regulsrions require thal the Bank sheuld sl underiske the wubjeciive svalustion of the
entire credit porifolis for the porposes of determiring NPLs 2nd provisiomng there sgaiest.
hﬂiinmm.uﬂuﬂmhmm-#imwmﬂ
swhjectve weslustiont congldering the Finsncisl condilion and repayrent behavior of thee
borroreers.

We Focommen thit the management showid continug ciose monitoring of such sigificant
[T G

BUOD Ebrabim & (o Chaimendd Accountantd
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Exposure n Pubiic Secter Entitees

The Baink by credf sapotene 16 major fublic Serter Entiliss P amounting to Re. 7,803
milllion as at December M, 2004, The total guarantesd amount by Gob & B 100 millian
T detaily of the PSES are o follows:

BT owr Ot i reg Gal Tacilities - | Tatement | Classifcation
P

fund baie Ciaafinles ol i par B0
Relaxation | classified
Advance
-u.__ raaaaas
| Gab FO0D
DEPARTMENT | 7804 587,650 | 3,800,000 000 Ha| il Mpygular

Furtter, the moome on this fackity for £ Seplaenhr quartesr wa delaed by 104 days 1l
the receipl of the mme, therefore the income on the waid facllity has been Bnpended as of
December }1, M4 & par the repadremsent of PR-B amouniang Lo Ry, 198,476, 305,

Thits progeerty In under [igation as varous comglaints wene odged agaimi the Bark bo Sindh
Basliciing Comtrol Authority (SBCA) on the pounds that the preperty i Deing wed for
commarchal purpens contrary 1o i legad statis & 8 residentisl property and that floor plam
of the first and second fioors of this properny e rol sppeoved by the relevast suthorities
SBCA isued Fatice to the Bank for llegal comitruction and 1o demolish it. The Senk had filed
a1t for permansst imfunclion Selere o wenlon ol judge agasat the SBCA whilie inforsting
the Cowrt that i Bas takes necrmary mestures o regulariee snd ta Being the constiuction
o e Bank's property within the parameter stipulated by Sinh Bullding Cantroi Authority
[SBEA), However, uncs the notification for regularization of wapproved comstnaction ha
ey sspended comsaguent to the Corstitutionsl Petition no. D-408/ 003 pending bedore
High Court of S, Karachi, the Bark becaene a party 1o the Comtitulional Petition o
AFN I and meved & ving-de application before & senior ol Judge, Corsequently, the
proceadings of the case pending before the judge were adjourned sine-die (il the deciuion
of ihe Constitutional Petition pending before the High Cour of Sedh.

B0 Elwahim & Ca, Chartered Arcountanty
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The Hask'y legsl cousiel hin conlirmes thal (he Rank i not Dlely |0 ufler amy loas s the
cade, Accardingly, the Bank conbives o carry thin siset ol 08 fair vatue of s, 10000 mil o
i Lhe Tinane sl Siaberferls,

HAWARTHAH

The lead st Mawabifah wes granied to the Bank for the comsnaciion of bank buiidng on the
directives of Chief Minsstar Sindh. However, & peron (the Party) lllegally rated claim en the
tand and tiegally trassforrod the land to two other persons. This wad contendied by the Rask
in the Cowrt of i senior civil judpe, Mawasbehah end The weit was decreed in Bank'y lver,

The Farty fled appeals up 10 Scpreme Court kewel Dul all the spoeals have Deen dismissed.
After dewmimal appeal from the Sepreme Court the Basiy decree sttained finality.
Cormpguenily, exetution applicetion was flled by (he ok to suecide the judgment decres
reqjuiring revenue autihariliey o demarcile U lang angd inee Gille documenly in the pame
af the Bank. No decision has yet been tmued in respect of the seecution application to date
wndl The Rark dor nol Beve (he possearion of iy land,

¥ie usderitand that the Bank is sl pursuing this matier and the lawyer responsible for the
concormed matter i of the view that the Banky intereit & sudiicendly ssoured with no
likeiihood of any apparent lom. Howewes, the fard contiers fo be recorded at Bs. 0,12
miljion bairg Lhe amount of loase money depoastod with Munigipal Committiee, NawabBhah,
Acpordingly, due Lo lhe sbove remom, and in view of the uncertainty sill imoboed, the Bank
s it revaloed the above land.

KOHAT

The property located st Mohal & n 8 demolishieg condilion and IS nol i the Banky use,
During the prinr years, the Bank was not able to il thit property and delermine i el
wallim primarily dus b ihe renaon thal the praperty b shusted in a locafity where an active
market ler sale/parches of prepeTiios dom ot oainl med (he EEl coRditons ol
isle/ purchase of propertios Taversble, Thevelore, (he carrying amount of the property
contimms 1o be Fx. 1 only, We heve been informes that the Baek will sell 26 poperty when
the Bank's Board of Directon spproves This same and market conditions nprave. Arcordingly,
o the thme Being, U Bank has obtaingd sn extanaion in tirs ipecified in Section 10 of the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1961 whereby the SBP has sliowed the Back Lo tetain the
progerty Gill the st i favorabie for wale the of thi property.

EDI:I E}:r:ﬁlm & Co. Chartered Ateountsnts
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The prapediy wad Svarded o the Bank By the Govermeent of Pabisten for the parpose of
caying oul Bank's bisiness, The Bank has rot ubilized Dhs propety ssd i idie, Therelare,
the Bank's management had decided to sell the propsrty aifter obtaining prior apenoval from
the Govemmont of Pakivtan. Mowever, the Bank has not boen able to secure the agproval of
Covernment of Pakistan becaas of Supreme Court of Palchiany reitraining onder 0 4 kb
moto Cade mo. TEII01 1 which prohibits (e ale/trasder fmatation of state Lunch 18 furthes
erder, Since the property i idle, the Bank ko obteined swtention in tme pecified in Section
10 of the Desiing Compasies Ordinance, 1961 for the holdieg of idle properties from the
Yiabe Dars of Pakistan (S5 end the S han aliowed Uhe Dank 10 felain ihe property ai
Earpurkhies B the order in e molo case na. I renales efective.,

LB DAMAGES CASE AGAINET EANK

The Bark sntered Il an sgresmend to open Letter of Credit (L) oh behall of Pesrl Cables
wed Conductors (Private] Limdied, The B of Lading (0L ) prepared and dispatches By the
Bank contaiwd Incomect mformation dos to which the Company did mot recelve the rew
paletial oi tine and |t caused oelay of anound four mosths. Due Lo Ihe Wnavalaslity of the
ram malerial, the Company's factory win ron-operational Leading 1o icases and reputational
darmape a0 uitirmately i wes black lisied by & ma)or governiment By,

Om Mowenbes 04, 2070 Pear Cabens aod Conductons [Privaie) Limited fied o coe againsl the
Bank in gh Court of Skndh mad damages claimed by the compuny amountad to R 1,106
million, The case is s11ll orgatng and 15 betng adjuurmed time to Lime.

10, RATIO OF MUMAER OF BRAMCHES AMD ATMS

m‘mwﬂmﬂhmmmﬁﬂ 1912 of the Siaste Bank of Fakiian
which slates that eifective from 101 1 all barks sre requited Lo malslis 121 TeLio of Brenc e
1o & T,

it is moted that the Lank has onty complied with T8.57 percent of the sald Ciroulsr (42
Branches to 13 ATs) a5 at 31 Decembes 2024,

11, DEFICIEMCACS P4 FINANCIAL REPORTING CLOSE PROCESS [FRCP)

The Fnancisl Reporting closs process is the act of reconding, reconciling, and reviewing all
fmainesy traneactions 1o create acruraie feanclal reports. We kive olnerved dormg our
wadi That the general Ledgens are extracted fram the yyatem and then marally compied by
the management o prepare e Trisl Belance snd sfersend, the fieancial siaterments are
prepared mesually using the Trial Balance, hrough spreadihert paciage
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1L

Doan to the sature and comploatty of the bankieg opefation, thenp it & ek Tl the masml
prepamation of the Msancial staiermerds can resall into frased or ervan s the process. The
Financlal Bepartisg Closs Prodess & of ey importance in 8 entity (o enaire falr snd troe
presentation of the fnencial Slatements.

Thoredore, we recommend thal the Bank should deploy mtegraied scoounting wofiwane lor
the prepadation of the Financisl Sutements thal are lies from mislatermsn) whethes due

o Traud or Srmrs.
WOREERT" WELFAREL FUBiD

The Sinch Workers Welfare Fund (5%wF ) ACt was published i the officisd gassile on June 4,
015, As per SWWF Act, every induntrial evtabiinhment located in the provinge of Sindh,
whise total ingame for the year b By, 300,000 or more shall pay to the TWWT & smount
equil Lo teo percenl of SCrounling incame o Lanable inCome whicheves is higher.

e have beon informed by the management and Ha bogal advsor that the SWWTE & not
apgicable on the Dank om ihe bsi of follpeing grouesd

1) [Banking comparnies cannot be coridened au @n induntrind establishment; snd

i} & provincial legstation cannct recover any levy that & based on the entire scoounting
income or Lnaable incorne of the Bank brisg an endity that cperabes s more thee one
proviecn — sl called & “Tras-proviecial entity®,

Firthwermote, The prowinciad adsembly oF Punjeh hads appriseed “The Punjab Worker Weifare
Fund Act, 3019° on Decenber 11, 2009, Under the Punjab WWF ke, every “miteblichment™
wihone total income ot Dhe year i s, 590,000 o more shall be bable (o pay to the Punjab
Wirkert Weilane Fund, 0 respect of thal yoar, § Wim sgual to 1 percent of its totel noome,
The wirdl “sstablishment™ has been defined n the Purjal industrial Retation Act, 2000 na
oo

*ary office, Firm, fsctery, sociely, ordevibling, compafy, Shop, premises oF eaterprise n
the Punjad, which employs workmen directly o thioegh & confracion for the porpose of
EArTying en any buniness o industry and dnclodes all ity departments and branches, whethar
iEsted = T vame place or in differerd pleces hawing & coreman balence shest ped Fucept
i seciisn 3 includes & collpcibve Bangaining wnit, i amy, contitded s @y elablibmenl
or group of eulsblidmente®

ELD Ebralam & Co. Chartered Acoountants
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We vl Ll te highlight 1hat Uie definillon of “establivhimest™ under tha Pun]il WaTF Lw
B guite wide snd Could potendialiy ncluce benis s well. in this correction the manupemen |
mariniaim iis view similer (0 iy view in Che Cose of SWONF Act Lhei prowincial legisiation
canmat Fecoeer apy bevy on the bess of tatal pes-Pakistan income from entites that operate
in mOne thae one prosince, The Rank has not created sny provision in respect of Punjalb WaF
At

The Banki's legal advisor = of the view that the Bank is a fress-provincial establishment, and
it i not an mdatHal ritablishment and |0 cawr of Inconiistensy in Proviecial nd Federal law
{for & Lra-roy ihcial etablnhment|, tha fecraily (ogilated law shall prevall where in the
Bk i exempl Wince majority of s shares se beld by the GoP. Accondingly, the Bank shall
b mabjert 10 1he provisioes of Federal (aw which apply ondy on intusinel euablshments.
Therelore, the wime shall rot spply to Bark rot being an industrial sisbisfenent.

The toisl prowision feld a3 ai December 11, T004 smounted e 0.0, TEY millics,

Furthermere, in this connection, & would lise 1o draw the sttonton of the Board towards
tre recent order of the Siedhy igh Court (“the Court™) hssnd on Jenuary 11, 025 jorder
sheet enlry Mo C.P.NO.D-2680 of HNT a/w| scoepling & ples of the pelilioner that Trem-
Provincisl Entilies should follaw the federal s governing Dhe Wirkers' Wellare Fund jWwF)
rather than the prowincial (aws wetil suchk time the respective Proviecial Covernments
develog 8 worbable mechanivn 1o enicabily rewtve the poit -develulion bram-prowingial
i,

B i pertivenl Ta noDE Thas walle phesding the sbove-cited case, B petiteser pounsel felhnd
ipon the dechion of the Councll of Cemmon Interest (D01} & i meetisg dated December
11, 3% whersin it wai resolved that, belrg Dram-provincisl srd inter-provincial malten,
inlerelia, WAF jhould renain with the Federsl Government o perform s funcliom onder,
interaifa, Workers Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1371, untll sach fime a mubElly apreed
mechaniem i develoged,

Fram the above wordings of the CCL 0 sppewry that eves the Companies thal sre Mol
opaTating 1 multipie provinces Shinld also depastt WAWT in the hank acooont of Federal Board
of Arvenur, rather tham the provincisl reverne authoritios, until such time o Subsily-agreed
mechanim 1o writle e LFan proviecial ey see doveloped.

Page - 1]
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1 AMEHOMENTS I CORPORATE TAX RATE ON RAMNE

A per Section 1 of the income Tax iAmendreeal] Drdinance B34 promulgated on December
18, 1024, the rate of tax for banking companies kad been amendad from Tax Year 200% and

o i follow:

O
T S . S—
—_— Lo
| 2007 and onwenech | as .

Further, the aforementined amendment has alie fedtricted e requirement of Rule 6T Sub-
Ade bl ol the Sevewith Stheduls of Income Tas Ondinance, 1001, regasding rate of Las
applicable an tawabie Income altritstable (o Erveitment in Pedersl Govemment securities n
secordance wilh grom sdvancet Lo Sspoiits retio (ADR) 1N tan year 2024 Accordingty, the
fark hi cadculated ks current ta sxpense for the tax year 225 using the tax rate of 408
Addrtioradly, the Bank B re-rmeansred it defierred tan balasces, applying & tin rate of 4%
far halshor MaLeting o Lubirguent yeerl.

fd.  AMERDMEWTS IM SEVENTH SCHEDULE OF THE MCOME TAX DRDIMANTE, 2001

The Fineece Act, 2004, hay amended ilule 1(g] of te Seventh Schoedule of the Incomme Tax
Drdinance, 001 (he Ordinance) which now states Uhal adjstment made in the snnwal
sccounts, on accownt of any apolicable Accownding standand or policy o any guidedines. or
imbructions of State Back of Pakévtan thall be escluded in arrivieg ot the taxable income of
 baniing company, & was further clarified thal cothing in this Ruls thall be o construed ag
i aflew & notlonsl e, of charge G i any Aelionsl gain on By veiment under sy
rigiiErin o irstruction onless all the ovents that delermsing weh gam or kow have scoormed
and the gain of el cen be determined with reasonsbie sccUTRTY. Accordingly, the
amuendment Mg el thal sdjusirmenst will be aliowed on & Cih basis Fether than aconss] hasis.
W hive been given Lo usderstasd by the manspement thad the banks hawe not yet sdooldd
ther approach a1 they Betsere Lhat this will resll in deviation fram the fndamental princiole
aof the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000 and it Sewenth Schedide. Corsaquantly, the management
has applied sccrual basls of scoomting in eccondance with Sections 11 and J4[7) of the
Crdingnce of (omputation of Lasable iocome which 1 consiibert with the paal practice of
thas Bmnk.

We recommend it the mansgernent shruld cbitain & formal legal [ las spirdon o confirm
their urdertanding on this matier.
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15 PMURCHASE OF MORTGAGED PROPIRTY
CO-DPCRATIVE HOUSING SOCIETY

Puring 2018, the Bark purchased & property theough an auction conducted by the Ramking
Court as part of Lhe recowery sull sgesmithe property’s owner [udgement deblor or J0) who
had detasited on & loan from the Bank amounting o Bs. 4320 million.

Subrpguent ta the depos®t of the bid money of B, 17070 million by he Bank that set bated
o valusiion whmitied by b & spproved by the Courl i nénsqienl cosduct valuation of
the property on (he srength of that salualian, the judgment oehlor filed objection agairal
the confrmation of the male bn fiver of (he Bank on the ground that the property & walued
ol B 4.5 mikios whersas ©t W being wld 8l previes veluation which I leeeer,
Apcordingly, Benking Cosrt thioigh the atder datexd Decomber 14, 38, declined 1o confirm
the ssle i favor of Bank and directsd 10 retun the bid amount Bi. 171.70 million 1o the
Bank and Porther direcied for fresh valuation of the mortgaged property af the cost of
judgment deftor. The Renk has Filed an appes] s the Sindh High Court against the ander of
i Banking Court snd combonds that the morigaged property o be harded owr (o D Dank,
The mansgemenl in cormiullalion =ith the [lank's legsl counssl s confident of & posilive

oulc ome.
Th.  BANKCS INFORMATION TECHNDLOGY STRIACTURE

We diaw attention i5 & certiln matter noted by us regarding the Bank’s General IT Control
Efviranment |,e, the Bank h oring cbeolete versom of data base (Orache 12c and M5 500
sarver MOMTL

Ve recommend the bank should epdsie Lo the Elest versiom of dats bese for smooth 1T
Fdiiheni e ot

17,  COWNCENTHATION OF DEFOSITE ARD ADVAMNCES

W have noted that 8 December 11, 334 top 50 cunlomerns were mamtaning deposits of R,
12,721,575 million with the Bank, which s 40.26% of the total deposits of Rs. J1,600.021
million ot that dale.

B00 Eorabim B Co. Chartered Acoourntants
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Total pawforming loars &1 & Decamber 11, 1004 asounts to M 7,071,594 million including
furded and non-fended exposure, Dwl of these perlorming losns, we hive observed hgh
corcentration of 18.05%% amounting B 2.B04. 9 million provided fo provincial govermment.
Where out of remaining &, %55, s, 694011 million pertains to corporate customens, B,
1TT B mlibion perisim to smadl orgd swrdium estecprises aad realaing B, P55 56 mdilion
pertmira to comaoemer houirg sl giafl ks

Thiy dhepic iy enpomiaie B0 high oredil riak asd marked ol as (pas portiolio b mare WnceptBle
o fictuation s markel conditionm. Due Lo concentiation of loamd i bess dbeenified
portfelio, defmits from few obligarn can have significent |mpect on finascisl Bealth of Bank.

Wo contider that the depotts and advance base of the Bank reed to be divmified in order
1w resluce relisnde o0 few Custoenens orly [Concenbration risk),

BREACH OF CLEAKUP REGUIREMENT USENER RUSRING FINANCE FACILITIES

Turing the conure of our sudit, we pbsereed thal the credit Facilitiey Offer Letter (FOL) of
runnimg fimance fac#ities indlosies & Lerm wed condition set forth below:

Clean up requirernent

* Tornwed hadl be maintaived throwgh clesnup b mandetory during e tencr of the
Lodn™ Hosweved, we have idestifies fallowing ingLandes whede bresch of Chass o recjulrsTent
ity evideroed

Sugrns Buildety & Developey
Unitid Sginning Ml

Al Hack Steet Casting
farkat Garmenty

‘Wi recommend that the Bask feview i3 proceiees related 10 D turfiver &f nanning Andscs
#ccounts and eraune adberente i the agreed-Lipon terma for clean-upt during the loan Lingr.

INDEFEMDEHCE
We conlfvm that s owr profemions] judgment, The Firm 1§ isdependent. withs 1he meaning

of repadatory snd professionsl requiremsents and B objectivity of Hhe it engageTent
partser ared Syt SLal¥ has S0l been compromined.

BOD Ebrahim E Co. Chartered Accountants
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ROLATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We fhuve been informeed By The management thal there were oo iraniactions with related
parties other thas thase disclewsd in the Paamcial statsments,

CONTINGEMCIES AMD COMMITRENTS

We hive been Wformed by the mansgewend that theis ire no Contlagencier and
eormimitments B2 the reporting date other than discleed in the fisencial sstements,

Wie hawe been informed by the managemend that o cme of (rece ard evror has been brougt
1o thel irawicdes durirg the pear.

COMPLILHEE WITH LAWS AMD BECULATIONS

We have been indormisd by the management that there are o non-comalissces with the
feieeant Laws asd regulations.

PUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Wi e been infprmed by the manageones] that there were no silsequent events hiving an

impact on amewsty aed / o datlbise othet thes Chowe decloasd @ the Minascial
[

We e this coportumity to thank your monsgement and staffy fof the COurteTy Snd COODETELIGN
extenced 10 U8 during L course of our sudi,

'I'ml‘ltﬂ'ﬂlr_-“..)\

[\baes
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Annexure ‘A"

Rs in million
items requiring Board's resolution 1024
Additions to eperating fised assets amaunting to: w52
Additions to ntangibie assets amounting Lo 20.60 |
Provision made as of December 31, 2014 amounting to: 1,988.05
“Heversal of provision against advances amounting to: )
investments made during the year amounting Lo 17,1418 |
“Payable ageinat gratuity a1 of the yoar end amounting 1o; 5.3
| P for compensated absences a5 of the year end amounting to; &9.16
Recerivable againit permion abligation as of the year erd amounting (o 17,91 |
" Change In accounting policles regarding FRS § “linancial imstruments”
and LS 370 IFRIC 21,
approval for provision for bomu amounting to: 111881 |
Acknowledgement of acceptance of minutes of meeting circulated
regarding going Concern status of the Bank from Ministry
Anraxure ‘B
800 Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants Poge - 18
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hrnuuire 'R

Irformathon and Confirmations regaired

Letter of representation addressed to us on hetail of the Boand and sigred By Lhe Chasl
Executier Officer amd Chie! Fimpncial Cffcer aa per drafl provided by un.

IFRS 9" Firancial bairuments® Relsled dicksure to be mcluded in Fraccial Statements

Acnowlpdgment of minates of mesting with relevant Minndny serd bo you for crouaton

Corfirmatios from the following Rasis.

= Notional Bank of Pesistan (branches)

Dertailed nbtes and relatod workings or vorificsl on purposes ot beliw

12, Compersation of direcloss and other ey management personne

40, Fair value messsrements

A, Segment inlormatien

A2 Tront Activities

4], Retated party transections

dd, Capital adequady. leverape ritho & liguidity requirementa

A5, Risk g ermeat

Arry piler rale &8 réquined In Conretion with theis Tiaancial Matementy.

BED Ebrakim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FIRST WOMEN BAMK LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemaents

Cgrirvion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of FIRST WOMEN BANK LIMITED {“the Bank™),
which comprise the staterment of firancial position as at December 31, 2024, and the statement of
profit and loss account, the statement of comprehemive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the cash flow statement for the vear then ended, along with unsudited certified returns received
fram the branches excepl for 13 branches which have been sudited by s and notes o the financial
statements, Inclisding material accounting palicy information and other explanatory information and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowiedge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In aur opinkon and to the best of our information and according to the explanations ghven to s,
statement of financial position, statement of profit and lods account, statemnent of compeehensie
income, statement of changes in equity and cash fow statement together with the nofes

part therenl conform with the aceounting and reporting standards ad spodicable (n Pakistan, and
give th information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1961 and the Companies Act,
20T (XX of 2047), 0 the manner 5o required and respectively ghve a true and fair view of the state
of the Bark's affairs as at December 11, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehentive Income, the
change in squily and (s cash flowa for the year ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conductod our audit in scoordance with international Standards on Auditing ([5As) a1 applicable
in Palistan, Our resporaibilithes under those standarnds are furthar described in the didibor®s
Resporsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of cur report. We are independent
of the Bank i sceordance with the Imernstional Fthies Siandards Board for Aecoumients’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants &% sdopted by the institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
ithe Code) and we have Tulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, We
believe that the audit svidence we have obtaingd i wificient and sppropriste Lo provide a basls for
£Har Dpinson.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw sttention to Motes 1.2 and 1.4 of the financisl statements wivich inclicate that, as of that
date, the Bank’s paid-up capital inet of losses) stood below Lhe Manimum Capital Reguirement of Rs.
3 billion prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan by Rs. 0,83 bitlion,

As stated in pote 1.4, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Mote 1.1,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Bank's ability to continue a3 a going concern, Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Page - 1
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information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

is resporsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infarmation included in the annusl repart but does not include the fimancial statements and our
Budibor’y report. therson,

Dur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not Sxpress
ary form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility {3 to read the other
information and, in doing 30, consider whether the other information is matérially inconsistent with
the financial statements of our knowisdge obtained in the acdit or otherwise appears (o be materially
misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there i3 a material mistatement of the
other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibifities of Management and the Board of [irectors for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and Fair presentation of the financial statements in
sccordance with the scoounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements
of Banking Companies Ordinance, 192 and the Compankes Act, 2017 (0X of 2017) and for much
internal conmtrol as management determines & necessary to enable the preparation of fnaschsl
staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, management ks respomible for avesing the Bank"s ability to
continue as a going concem, distlosing, & applicable, matters related to going concemn and ussng
the going concern basis of accounting unlsss mansgement either intends to liquidate the Bank or to
cease pperations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responaible for gverseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are Lo obtain resonable axurance about whether the financial itatementi a3 & whale
are free (rom malerisl misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and Lo baue an auditor's report
that Includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance i & high level of assurance, but & not a guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material mhstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
materisl if, individually of in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic dectiiom of users tahen on the batls of theve financial siatoments,

&5 part of an audit in accondance with [Sds as applicable in Pakistan, we exevchse professional
wﬂmhﬁpﬂmwm#ﬂthmt.“m:

» igentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial itatements, whether due
to freud or error, design and perform audit procedures respomive to those risks, and obtain sudit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinkon,

Page - 1
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The risk of not detecting a material mistatemant resulting from fraud (s higher than Tor one
resulting from error, a3 fraud may involve colkmion, forgery, Intentional omiusions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intermal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circemstances, but nol for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

Evaluste the appropriateness of accounting polickes used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclowres made by management.

Conclude on the appropristensss of managemant"s use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists related to
evients of conditions thal may cast dgnificent doubt on the Bank's ability 10 continue a5 & going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required (o draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disciownes in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. Howsver, fulure events or conditions may cause the Bank
bo cease (o conthmee as & golng concern.

Evaluste the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, (ncluding
the disciesures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying randactions and
MHIWHHHMM.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among ofher matters, the planned scope and
timing of the sudit and significant sudit Mndings, including any significant deficiencies in intermal
control that we identify during our sudil.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Reguirements
Baned on our audit, we further report that in our opinion;

a)

£}

proper booki of account have besn hept by the Bank &5 required by the Companies Act, 2017 (MIX
of 2017) and return referred sbove from the branches have been found sdequate for the purpose
of our audit;

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehendhve income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement
(together with the notes thereon have besn drawn up I confermity with the Banking Ordinance,
1962 and the Companies Act, 2047 (XX of J017) and are in agreement with the books of acoount
and retums;

imvestments made, expenditune incurted and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and power of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have
come to our notice have been within the power of the Bank; and

rakat deductible at source under the Takat and Ushe Ordinance. 1980 (XVI of 19804, was
deducted by the Bark and deposited in Central Takat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance.
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W confinm that for the parpose of ol audit we have coversd more than siaty per cent of 1ot sl loans
&nd advances of the Bank.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Zulfir Al
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FIRST WOMEN BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
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FIRST WOAEN RANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREMESSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR EXDED DECEMBER 11, 104
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FIRST WOMEN BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1

L2

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

First Women Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporsted under the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on November 21, 1989 in Pakistan as an unquoted public
limited company and commenced operations on  December 02, 1989, The Bank is engaged in
commercial banking and related services. The registered office of the Bank is situated at
ground floor, S.T.SM. Foundation Building, Civil Lines, Kamchi. The Bank operates a
network of forty two branches as at December 31, 2024 (Degember 31, 2023 forty two
branches). The short term and long term credit ratings of the Bank rated by PACRA in June
2024 are ‘AY and ‘A-' respectively. The Bank is controlled by Government of Pakistan through
Ministry of Finsnce (which holds 8264 % of the Bank's share capital).

Being a public sector bank, in terms of the Stte Bank of Pakistan (SBP), prescribed minimem
capital requirements vide it lemer reference BPRIVBAECPGIT322014 dated January 01,
2014, the Bank is required 10 have a minimum paid up capital (net of losses) (MCR) of Rs. 3
billion and capital sdequecy ratio (CAR) of 18% a2 all times, subject 1o the condition tha
MCR level shall remain enforced until the Bank remaing a public sector entity, the Bank wall
not be allowed 1o pay dividend until its paid-up capital and reserves reach Rs. 6 billion and the
per party exposure limit of the Bank will be 50% of the prudential regulation's limits until the
Bank's paid-up capital and reserves reach Ra 6 billion.

The Bank has earncd net profit of Rs, 79,088 million for the year ended December 31, 2024
and as of this date, the Bank's MCR (representing pakd up capltal net of sicumulated losses)
wos Rs. 2,17 billion which is less than the mininum reguired amount.

Under BSD Circular No. 19 of 2008 dated September 05, 2008 of the SBP any bank that fails
1o meet the MCR within the stipulated persod shall render itself Hable to the following actions:

{} Imposition of such restrictions on lis business including restrictions on scceptance of
deposits and lending as may be deemed fit by the State Bank.

i) Descheduling of the bank, therchy converting it into & non-scheduled bank.

fii) Cancellation of the banking Neense if the State Bank believes that the bank is not in a
position 1o meet the minimam paid up capital requirement or CAR.
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1.4

Privatization status of the Bank

The Ministry of Privatization stated that the Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCoP), in its
meeting held on October 31, 2018, had placed the First Women Bank Limited (FWBL) on the
Active Privatisation Program, duly mtified by the Federml Cabinet on November 1, 2018,
Accordingly, the Privatization Commission issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) on October
18, 2019, inviting Technical and Financial Proposals. After completing the technical and
financial evalustion of the bids, the consortium comprising M/s Bridge Factor & National
Bank of Pakistan was appointed as the Financial Advisor for the privatization of FWBL with
the approval of Board of the Privatization Commission Board on December 27, 2019.

Accordingly, Financisl Advisory Services Agreement (FASA) was signed on Janusry 27, 2020,

The Minisuy of Privatization farther noted that the due diligence report of the Bank was
fimalired in June 2020 and the Cabinet Commitice on Privatization approved the Transaction
Structure on August 21, 20200 However, the privatization of the Bank is still active and
pending ns af reporting date.

Going concern basis of sccounting

The Bank's MCR (representing paid up capital net of sccumulated losses) was Rs. 2.17 billion
(December 31, 2023: Rs. 2.15 billion) which is less than the minimum required amount by Rs.
083 hillion (December 31, 2023: 0.85 billion).

The Bank's paid-up capital (net of losses) stood below the MCR of Ra 3 billion prescribed by

the SBP (specifically for the Bank} which non-comphance may result in adverse regulatory
actions by SBP aa mentioned i mote 1.2 of the financial statements,

These financial stalcments have been prepared on a going concem basis based on the following
facts:

- Above fact has already been reported by the Bank to the State Bank of Pakistan and also 10
the Ministry of Finance (MoF), Government of Pakistan (GoP) as a major shareholder for
an arrangement to fill-up the shortage of Bank’s MCR and in order to avoid any punitive
action, the Bank's management |3 in continuous listson with SBP and MoF GoP. Further,
to date, the SBP has not taken any adverse action or imposed any restriction that could
impact the normal operations of the Bank. Moreover, the Bank is in the privatization list
of the GoP, and is being petively pursued for this purpose by the Privatization Commission
which also adds positivity 1o the sbove.

- Bank's management and the Board is fully confident that the regulstor and the major
shareholder (MoF GoP) will extend the due suppor for meeting the capital requiremends,
which is also evidem from the fact that historically the sharcholder has numerously
injected capital in the Bank whenever there was a shortfall. Despite the losses the Bank is
compliant with minimum required Capital Adequacy Ratio of 18% and is expecied o
maintain this sdequacy in periods subsequent 1o December 31, 2024, which is an indicator
of strong asset base of the Banic Pags-2
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The GoP via the MoF e bank's major shareholder holding 82.64 % of the Bank's equity is
fully commiiled to supporting the Bank, whenever required, 1o enable it 1o continue as
going concern, through policy and other intervention. Based on the historical available
support and central bank's action and also the fact that GoP has assured necessary
interventions when required 1o crable the Bank to continue 23 8 going concemn,
management believes that the Bank shall remain a going concern in foreseeable futare,
however, it may not do 80 in an adverse eventuality or unexpected events.

These events or conditions along with other matiérs as set forth in Note 1.2 indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significan! doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, the Bank may be unable to realize its assets and discharpe its
lishilities in the normal course of business. However, these fimancial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis which assumes thal the Bank shall operate its business,
realize its assets, discharge its liabilities and obinin refinancing (if necessary), in the normal
course of business. Accordingly, these finsncial ststements do not include any adjustments to
the carrying amounts and classification of asscts, lishilities and reporied expenses that may
otherwise be required if the going concern basis was not sppropriate.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In sccordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the
banking system 1o lslamic modes, SBP has issued various circulprs from time fo time
Permissible forms of trade-related modes of financing includes purchase of goods by banks
from customers and immediale resale to themn al appropriate mark-up in price on deferred
pavment basis. The purchase and resale arising under these amangements are not reflected m
these financial stalements as such, but are restricted to the amount of facility sctually utilised
and the appropriste portion ol mark-up thereon.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial smiements have been preparcd in accordance with the accounting and reporting
sinndards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise o)

- International Financial Reporting Sundards (IFRS Accounting Standards) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act
2017,

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issucd by the Stae Bank of Pakistan (SEF) and the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Page - 3
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add

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act,
2017 or the directives issved by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of the
IFRS requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and
the said directives shall prevail.

The disclosures made in these financial ststements have been based on a format prescribed by
SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 09 February 2023 with further addition made vide
BPRD Circulsr Letter No. 13 of 2024, dated 01 July 2024 and sccounting and financial
teporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of
International Accounting Standard {IAS) 40 "Investment Property® for banking companies till
further instructions. Further, ncconding to a notification of the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through S.R.O. No. 411 (1) / 2008 dased 28 April 2008, [FRS
7 "Financinl Instruments: Disclosures™ has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly,
the requirements of these slandards have not heen considered in the preparation of these
financial statements, However, investments have been classified and valued in sccordance with
the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

As per BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 dated 29 July 2024, unlisted equity securities are
currently carried at the lower of cost or breakup value a8 per the exemption granted by SBP.
Effective from 01 Jomuery 2023, =s per the requirement of [FRS 9, these will be measured aof
fair value under IFRS 13,

The Bank received an extension from SBP up to0 31 December 2025 for application of EIR in
generl for all financial assets and liabilities (excluding staff loans / subsidized loans), however
us financlal assets other than sdvances and financial labilities were already effectively carried
st EIR before the implementation of [FRS 9 hence said extendion has only been spplied on
advances (excluding staff loans / subsidized loans provided 10 employees) Thencfore,
advances we now camied al cost, excluding stafl’ loans, TERF and advances pertaining 1o
oversens opersfions, which are camied sl amortized cost, net of expecied credit loss
allowances.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved sccounting
standards that are effective im current year

There are certain new snd amended standards, issued by Intermational Accounting Standands
Board (IASB), imerpretations and smendments that are mandstory for the Bank's accounting
perinda beginning on or afier January 1, 2024 but are connidered not relevant or do not have
any material effect on the Bank's operations and therefore not detailed in these financial
statements except for IFRS @ (Financial Instruments), the impact of which is disclosed under
nole 5.1.

Fage - 4
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During the vear, the Institute of Chartered Accountents of Pakistan (JCAP) has withdrawn
Technical Release 27 °IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)' and issued the 'IAS 12
Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes' (the Guidance).
Accordingly, in accordance with the Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy
o recopnise minimum and final txes as ‘Levy” under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent

Liabilities and Contingent Assets™ which werepreviously being recognised as “Income tax”,
However, there is no impact on the financial statements of prior perfods.

Standards, interpretations of and amendmenis to published approved accounting
stamdards that are not vet effective

There are certain new and amended standards, issued by International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Bank's sccounting
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025 but are considered not 1o be relevant or will not
have any material effect on the Bank's finsncial stanements except for:

= the new standard - [FRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Siatements (IFRS
I8) (published in April 2024) with applicability date of January 01, 2027 by IASB. IFRS
18 is vl 1o be adopted in Pakistan, IFRS |8 when adopied and applicable shall impact the
preseniation of "Statement of Profil and Loss Account' with certain additional disclosures
in the financial stademenis.

- smendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' which clarify the date of recognition and
derecognition of a financial asset or financial Hability including settlement of labilities
through banking instnements and channels including electronic transfers. The amendment

when applied may impact the timing of recognition mnd derecognition of financial
linhilitien.

- amendment to [AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ which will

reqquire Banks to apply n consistent approach in assessing whether & currency can be
exchanged into ancther currency and, when it cannot, in determining the exchange rale
use and the disclosures 1o provide.

The management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be
adopied in the financial siatements s and when they are applicable and adoption of these new
standards, inferpretations and amendments, may bhave no material impact on these financial
statemnents of the in the period of initlal apelication.
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Critical nccounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting
siandards as applicable in Pakistan requires management 10 make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounis of asseis and linsbilities and income and expenses
as well as in the disclosure of contingent liabilities. It also requires management 10 exercise
judgment in application of its accounting policies. The estimates and mssociated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circomstanoes. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions 0 accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and in future periods
il the revision affects both current and future perlods.

Material accounting cetimates and arens where judgmenis were made by the management in
the application of sccounting policies are as follows:

1) classification ond credit loss allowance | provisioning againgt investments (noles 5.1.1,
$.1.2 and 9%

i) classification and credit loss allowance / provisioning againsi loans and advances (notes
£1.1,51.2 and 10),

i} meome taxes (notes 4.9 and 33);

iv) accounting for defined benefit plan and compensated absences (notes 4.10, 38 and 40;

v) depreciation of property and equipment (notes 4.5, 11);

vi) amortistion of intangibles assets (notes 4.7 and 13

vii) revaluation of property and equipment {note 4.5, 11);

viii lease liabilities and right-of-use assets (notes 4.6, 12 and 19);

ix) impairment of non-financial asiets (note 4.5,7); and

xi) eredit loss allowance / provision against other assets and other provissons (notes 5.1.2 , 14
and 21%;

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
Accounting convention

otherwise stated in relevant notes to these financial Matements.

Functional and presentation carrency
The financial stsements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is also the Bank's functional

and presenistion curmency. Except as indicated, financinl information presented in Pakistan
Rupees has been rounded to nearest thousand.

Page - 6



4.1

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
consistent with those followed of the previcus financial year excepl for change mentioned in
5.1

Cash anid cosh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with
other banks

Investments

Investments include Federal Government securities and listed | unlisted shares. Classification
and messurerment of Federal Government securities snd listed, unlisted shares haz been
detailed in note 9.

Lendings to / barrowings from Maancisl imstitetions

The Bank enters into transactions of lendings and borrewings sl contracted mies for a specified
pervod of time. These are recorded as under:

Sale under repurchase obligation

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment 1o repurchase at a specified future date (repos)
continize to be recognised in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance
with sccounting policies for investment securities The counterparty liability for amounts
received under these agreements s included in borrowings. The difference between sale and
repurchase price 15 treated a8 mark-up / refurn / islerest expense and sccrued over the hife of

the repo agreement using effective vield method.
Purchase under resale obligation

Sccuritics purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future dase
(reverse repos) are not recognised in the stmement of financial position, & the Bank does not
obtain eontrel over the securities. Amounts pald under these agreements are included in
lendings to financial institutions. The difference between purchase and resale price is trested as
mark-up / returmn / interest income and acerued over the life of the reverse repo agreement using
effective yield method

(Mher obligations

Other obligations include borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan and unsecured call
bormowings which are recorded st the amount equivalent 10 proceeds recelved. Markup is
charged on such bomowmgs 1o the statement of profit and loss accoumt over the period of
bomrowing using effective interest rte method.

Page - 7
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Advanees

Loarns and advances inclading net invesiment in finance lease sre stated neét of credit loss
allowance / provision sgainst non-performing loan and sdvances, Credit loss allowance /
provision aganst lonns snd ndvances in Pakistan operations have been made in sccordance
with the requirements of the Prudential Regulstions and IFRS 9 spplication instructions issued
by the SBP. General provisions againal loans and advances in Pakistan operations have been
maintained against potential high risk sdvances based om the mansgement's estimates.
Advances are written off / charged off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery of 1o
clean up the balance sheet s allowed by the SBP,

Subsidised loans dishursed under Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) have been
recorded ot fair value resulting in recognition of fakr value adjustment on initial recognition.
Unwinding of income on fair value adjustment is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
ECcounl.

Fived assets and depreciation
Property and eguipment
Owned masets

Property and equipment, except land and buildings. are stated ot cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Land is stated at revaluoed amount.
Buildings are stated st revalued amount less sccumulated deprecistion and sccumulmed
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged o siatement of profit and loss account
applving the straight line method at the rates stated in note 11.1. Depreciation on addition is
charged from the month in which the assets are available for use and no depreciation is charged
in the month the assets are disposed off.

Subseguent costs are included in the assot™s carrying amount or recognised as a separnie assel,
a5 appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Bank and the cost of the itemn can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o the
statement of profit and loss account during the period in which they are incurred.

Assets are derecognised when disposed ofl or when o future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are included
in ststement of profit and loss account.

The sasets’ residun] values and useful lives are reviewed annually, and adjusied if sppropriaie,
at staternent of financial position date.

Land and buildings valuations are carmed oml by professionally qualified valuers with
sufficient regularity 10 ensure that their carrying amounts do not differ materially from their
foir value.
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< Any revaluation incremse arising on the revalustion of such nssets is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income and sccummlated in equity, except to the exient that it
reverses a revaluation decrease fior the same asset previously recognised in the statement of
profit and loss sccount, in which case the increase is credited to statement of profit and
loss necount 1o the extent of the decrease previously cxpensed. A decrense in the camying
amount ansing on the rovaluation of such assets is recognised in satement of profit and
loss sccount 1o the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in “Surplus on
Revaluntion of Fixed Assets™ relating 10 8 previows revaluation of that asset.

«  Deprecistion on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value
assigned 1w such assets on revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken o the
statement of profit snd loss account.

= An amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of associated deferred tax is
transferred from “Surpius on Revalustion of Fixed Asses™ 1o unappropristed profit
through statement of changes in equity to record realization of surplus to the extent of the
incremental depreciation charge for the year,

- Onm the sobsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the atributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the revaluation reserve is tranaferred directly 1o unappropriated profi.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. These are
transferred 1o specific assets as and when assets sre available for use.

Impairment

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impaimnent when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recovernble, If any such indication
exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recovershle amounts, fixed msets
are written down to their recoversble amounts.

The resulting impairment loss is taken 1o profit and loss account except for impairment loss on
revalued assets which 5 adjusted against the related revaluation surplus 1o the extent that the
impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluntion of assets, Where impairment loas
subsequently reverses, the carrving amound of the nsset is increased 1o the revised recoverable
pmount but limited 1o the extent of the amount which would have been determined had there
been no impamrment. Reversal of impamment loss i recogmised a3 income in the statement of
profit and loss sccount.

Page -9



4.7

Lease linbility and right-of-use assels
The lease liahdlities are initinlly measured at the present value of lease payments that includes:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivabl

«  variabbe lease pavment that are based on an Index or a rate as af the commencement date;

«  mmounts expected 1o be payable by the lessee under residunl value guaranices, if any;

- the exercise price of & purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
opthar; and

«  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lense term reflects the lessee
exercising that option

The lease payments are 10 be discounted using the incremental borrowing rate being the mie
that the Bank would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary 1o obtain an asset of similar
vilue in 8 similer sconomic enviroament with similer terms and conditions.

On initial recognition, right-of-use assets are mensured at cost comprising the {ollowing:

- the amouwnt of the initial measurement of lease linbility;
any lense payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

= mmy initinl direct costs incumed; and

= an estimae of restoration costs.

The Bank leases various offices / branches for the purpose of its operational activities. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 3 10 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individunl basis ind conmin a wide range of differeni terma and conditions, The lease
agrecments do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as secunity for
bomrowing purposes.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated &1 cost bess accumulated amortisation and sccumulated impairment
bosses, if any. The cost and the accumulsted amonisation of intangible assets of foreign
branches include exchange differences ansing on currency translation af the vear-end rafes.
Amortisation is charged to the ststement of profit and loss account applying the straight-line
method ot the rates stated in note 13, Amorisation on additions is charged from the month in
which the assets are svailable for use and no amortisation is charged in the month the
intengible assets are disposed off The estimsted useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Deposits and their cost

Depasits are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received.
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4.9.1

4.10

4.10.

Deposit costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using
effective yield method.

Taxution
Carrent

Provision of currend taxation {s based on taxable income [or the year determined in accordance
with the prevailing laws of taxation on income eamed. as applicable to the respective
jurisdictions. The charge for the current tax also includes ndjustments wherever considered
necessary relating 1o prior years, arsing from assessments framed during the year.

Deferred

Deferred tox is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assers and linbilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and wnused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible remporary differences and unused tax losses can be wtilized.

The carrying amoun of deferred mx assets are reviewed ot each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit or deductible temporry
differences will be available 1o allow all or pant of the deferred income tax asset 10 be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mensured al the tax rates that are expected 1o apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the linbility is seriled, based on tax mics (and txs lawn) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to gain { loss recognised on wurplus on revaluation of assets is charged /
cnedited 1o such nccount.

Emplover benefits
Defined benefit plans

The Bank operates an approved funded pession scheme for its eligible employees. The Bank
also operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for its efigible contractual employees. An actuarial
valuation of all defined benefit schemes is conducted every year. The valuation uses the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements of the net defined bemefit liability / nssets
which comprise sctusrial gains and Josscs, retum on plan assets (excluding inicrest) and the
effect of asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) mre recognised immedistely in other
comprehensive income. Past-service costs ure recognised immedintely in the statement of
profit and loss account when the plan amendment oocurs,
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4.10.2

Oiher employer benelits

4.10.2.1 Employees’ compensated absences

4.11

411

4112

The Bank also makes provision in these financial stmtements for its liskility towards
compensated absences. This liability is estimated on the basis of actuarial advice under the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the economic benefits associated with a transaction
will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Advances and investments

Income on loans and advances and debt security investments are recognised on a time
proportion basis that akes into sccount effective yield on the asset, In case of advances and
investments, profit suspended in compliance with the Prudential Regulations issued by the
SBP is recogmised on receipt basiz.

Interest / mark-up on rescheduled / restroctured advances and investments is recognized in
accordance with the Prudential Regulations isued by SBP.

Where debt securities (excluding beld for trading securities / FVTPL) are puschased o o
premuum or discount, those premiums / discounts are amortised through the statement of profit
and loss account over the remaining maturity.

Noa mark-up / inferest income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from certain non-funded banking services. The
relsted fee and commission income is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration o
which the Bank expects 1 be entitled in exchange for providing the services. The recognition
of fee and commission income depends an the purpose for which the fees are received, Fee and
commission income Is recognised when or &3 an entity satisfies the performance obligation,
either over time or at a specific point of time. Unearned fees and commissions are included
under other liabilities,

Commission on letters of eredil and guaraniees is recognized on time proportion basis.
Dividend income on equity investments |s recognised when right to receive is established.

Gains and losses on disposal of investments, property and equipment and intangible assets are
dealt with through the statement of profit and loss sccount in the year in which they arise,

Gamn or loss on sale | modification of financial assets is incloded in the stastement of profit and
loss sccount in the period in which they arise.
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4.13

4.4

418

Fareign currencies translation

The Bank's financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees (Ra.) which is the Bank's

Foreign currency transactions are converied into Rupees applying the exchange mie at the date
of the respective transsctions. Monetary assets and labilities in foreign currencies ame
transiated into Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing s the statement of financial position
date. All gnins or losses on dealing in foreign currencies are taken o the statement of profit and
loss account.

Contingent liabilities / commitments for leters of credit and leners of guarantee denominated

in foreign currencies are expressed in Rupee lerms at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
statement of financinl position date.

Credit allowanee for off balance sheet obligations

ECL for guaraniess, claims and other off balance sheel obligations {5 made when the Bank has
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past cvents, it is probable that an outflow of
resourced will be required 10 settle the obligation and a relishle estimate of amoun! can be

made. ECL sgainst off balance sheet items created based on ORR or Dinys past dues of bormows
and based on CCF factor on undrawn commitments, Charge 1o profit and loss account is stated
net of expocted recoveries.

MY setting
Financial nssets and financial lishilities are only set off and the net nmount is reporied in the

financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right o set off and the Bank intends
either 10 settle on a net basis, or 1o realise the xssets and to settle the liabilites simulianeously.

Fiduciary asseis

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank in the stastement of
Mnancial position.

Siatutory [ special reserve

Every Bank incorporated in Pakistan is required 1o mansfer 20% of its profit to a statutory

rescrve tintil the reserve equals share capital, thereafier 10% of the profit of the Bank is w0 be
transferred to this reserve. Special reserve was crested 1o meet regulatory requirements.
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4.18

4.19

4.1%.1

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluied eamings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Bagic EPS i
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 1o ordinary sharcholders of the Bank by the
weighted svernge number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diloted EPS s
determined by adjusting the stmement of profit and loss socount attributable 1o ordimary
sharehalders and the weighted pverage number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if amy. There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
issue ot December 31, 2004,

Accepiances

Accepmnces comprise undertakings by the Bank to pay bill of exchange drawn on customens.
Acceplances are recognised as financinl lability in the statement of finencial position with o
contractual nght of resmbursement from the cusiomer as & financial asset Therefore,
commitments in respect of acceptances have been accounted for a8 on balance sheet financial
nasets and finoncial linbilities,

Segment reporting

A segment is & distinguishable component of the Bank that is subject to risks and rewards that
are different from those of other sepments. A buginess segment is one that s engaged either in
providing certain products or services, where ns a geographical segment is one engaged in
providing certain products or services within o particular economic environment. Segment
mfrmation i presenied as per the Bank "y fumctional and managemeni reporting strocture.

Business segmenis
The Bank's primary segment reporting i3 based on the following business segmenis:

I Cerporate finance and commercial banking includes syndications and advances o

corporile enlerprises including deposits therefrom. Commercial banking inclades project
financing, export fimancing, other lendings, gunmnizes und bills of exchange.

[I. Treasury includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanpe contracts, lendings o financial
institutions and bomowings.

private lending nnd deposits, retail services offered to the retail customers.

IV. Commercial Banking includes lending and deposits banking services. private lending snd
deposits offered to the small and medium enteprises.
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4192  Geographical segments

!l-‘

The Bank operates in Pakistan only.
Application of new and revised Internatisnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

IFRS 9 - ‘Financial Instramenis’

The Bank has adopted IFRS 9 (read with IFRS 9 application instructions issued by SBF)
retrospectively with date of initial application as January 01, 2024, which resulied in changes
in sccounting policies and ndjustments to the amounts proviously recognised in the financial
statements, In terms of the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, adjustments to the camying
mmounts of financial assets and lisbilitics a1 the date of tansition were recognised in the
opening unappropriated profit and other reserves at the beginning of the current period without
restating the comparative fipuses. The mmpact on camyving amoudnts of the fmancial sssets snd
linbitithes are as following:

The following mble reconciles the aggregnie opening loan loss provision allowances under
SBP Prudential Regulations to the ECL allowances under IFRS 9 :

Ab i Jamuary B, T34
Pran s
o o ourresd | Hoemas v ECLs umsder
bashr e [RechaniBeacon] =0
Trmmas vl !
Rupess |5 W00

Impassnent nllosamnie agsmmE
Cash s Balawes with Trossary Banka . " ®
Tlabercr il 4 dtbey Hamli b - = . .
Lenutegs W e ssmlion 1346, (g . . 1M,
Achance 1974, 306 b L . 15904, 758
| FeenEmerm | 00, E . - 00
Swriup Heconabi - . * .
Cifk-baiance: daert cblgniinm 34,087 1.717 - TiEM
Tintad 3,057,450 0,169 - 1217651

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets, from their previous
measarement category in accordance with previous local regulstions 1o thelr new messuresment
categories vpon transition to IFRS 9 on Jamuary 01, 2024
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Classification
Financial nssets

Under IFRS 9, existing categories of financial assets: Held for trading (HFT), Available for sale
(AFS), Held 1o maturity (HTM) and loans and receivables have been replaced by, respectively:

- Financial sssets at fair value through profit or loss account (FVTPL)
= Financial assets af fair value through other comprebensive income (FVOCT); and
- Financial assets af amortised cost.

Fimancial liabilities

Under IFRS 9, the accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same as before
adoption of IFRS 9 and thus financial liabilities are being carried a1 amortised cost except for
derivatives which are being measured st FVTPL

Fusiness model:

The Bank determines its business model af the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Bank's busineds model ia not sssessed on an [nstrumen-by-instrument basis, but at o higher
level of aggregaled portfolios and is based on observable factors such ns:

= The objectives for the portfolio, in particular, whether management's strategy focuses on
eaming contractual revenue, malntalning a particular vield profile, matching the durntion of
the financial assets fo the durstion of the liabilitics that are funding those ssscts or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

= How the performance of the business model and the financial sssets held within tha

= The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) snd, in particular, the way those nsks are managed; and

= The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Bank's
ssgesnment. However, information about sales sctivity is not considered in isolation, bl &5
part of an overall msessment of how the Bank's stated objective for managing the financial
asscts 18 achieved and how cash Mlows are realised.

The business mode| assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst
case’ or 'stress case’ scenanios into account.
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Eventually, the financial assets fall under either of the following three business models:

i} Hold to Collect (HTC) business model: Holding assets in order to collect contractual cash

ii) Hold 1o Collect and Sell (HTC&S) business model: Collecting contractuil cash flows and
selling financial assets

i) Onher business models: Resulting in classification of financial assets as FVTPL

5112 Assessments whether contractual cash Mlows are solely payments of principal and interest
{ profit (SPPI)

As o second step of its clossification process, the Bank assesses the contractual terms of
financial assets 1o identify whether they meet the SPPI test. “Principal” for the purpose of this
test is defined as the fuir value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over
the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation
of the premium / discount). The most significant elements of interest / profit within & financing
armngement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To
maeke the SPPl sascssment, the Bank applies judgment and considers relevant factors such as,
but not limited 10, the currency in which the financial ssset is denominated, and the period for
which the Interest / profit raie is set. Where the comtractual terms introduce exposure to risk or

volmility thal are inconsistent with batic lending amangement, the related financial asset is
classifled and measired s FYTPL

L0113 Application to the Bank's financial assets
Dbt based Mnancial assets

Delst based financial assets held by the Bank include: advances, lending 1o financisl insthutions,
investmen in federal government securitics, corporate bonds and other private suluks, eash snd
balances with treasury hanks, balances with other banks, and other financial asscts.

a) These arc measured al amortised cost if they meet both of the following conditions and are
not designated as FYTPL:

- the assets are held within a business mode| whose objective is to hold pasets w
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates o cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest / profit on the principal
amount putstanding.

The Bank's business model for these financinl assets can still be HTC even when sales of
these financial assets ocour, However, if more than an infrequent number of sales of

significant value are made, the Bank assesses whether and how the sales are conmistent with
the HTC objective.
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b) Debt based financial assets are measured ) FVOCT only if these meet both of the following
conditions and are not desipnated as FVTPL:

- the asset are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractunl cash flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest / profit on the principal

¢) Debut based financial assets if these are held for trading purposes are classified as measured
at FVTPL

In addition, on imitial recognition, the Bank may irmevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or a1 FVOCI as &t FYTPL if
dormng so elimimates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Equirty instruments

Equity Instrumenis sre instruments ihat meel the definition of equity from the issuer's
perspective; that i, instruments that do nol contain a contractual obligation 1o pay and that
evidence a residual share in the issuers net assets,

The Bank measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Bank's management has elected, at initial recogrition, 1o incvocably designate an equity
investmenit o1 fair value through other comprehensive income. The Bank's policy is to designate
edquity invesiments ai FVOC] when those investments are held for purposes other than for
trading. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCT and are
not subsequently reclassified to the staternent of profit and loss account, including on disposal.
Impairmend losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separntely from other
changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such |ovestments, continue to
be recognised in the statement of profit and loss account as income when the Bank's right 1o
receive payments is established.

IFRS 9 has removed the requirement for impairment assessments om equily investments.
However, under BFRD Clircular Lenier ™No. 16 of 2024, dmed July 29, 1024, Banks may
continue to measure unguoted equity securities at the lower of cost or break-up value until
December 31, 2024. Stanting January 1, 2025, Banks will be required to measure unguoted
equity securitics at fair value, as mandated by the IFRS 9 application guidelines. For unguoted
securities where the break-up value is lower than the cost, the difference has been classified as a
loss and charged 10 the saement of profit and loss sccount,

Cains and losses on equity instroments af FVTPL are included in the “Galn on sales of
securities’ line in the statement of profit and loss sccount,
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S.1.1.4 Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial nssets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument, Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade dste, the dale on which the Bank purchases or sells the asset. Other
financial assets and lisbilities like advances, lending to financial institutions, deposits eic. are
recognised when funds are transferred 1o the cusiomers’ account or financial institulions.
However, for cases, where funds sre transferred on deferred payment basis, recognition is done
when underlving asset is purchased.

a) Amortived cast (AC)

Financial assets and financial liabilities under amortized cost category are initially recognised st
[alr value adjusted for directly attributable transaction costs, These arc subsequently measured at
amortised cost. An expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for financial nssets in the
ststement of profit and loss account. Imierest income [ profit / expense on these assets /
linbilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss account. On derecognition of these
financial nassets and |labilitics, capital gain / loss will be recognised in the sintement of profit
and loss sccount.

by Fair value through ather comprehensive income (FVOCT)

Financial assets under FVOCI category are initially recognised at fair value adjusted for directly
attributable transaction cost. These assets are subsequently measured af fair value with changes
recorded in OCL. An expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for debt based
financial assets in the ststement of profit and loss account. Interest / profit / dividend income on
these assels are recognised in the sistement of profit and loss secount. On derecognition of debt
based financial assets, capital gain / loss will be recognised in the statement of profit and loss
acceuni. For equity based Bnancial ssscts clssificd =s FVOCL, capital gain / loss is transferred
from surplus / deficit to unappropristed profit.

€} Fair value through profit or less (FVTFL)

Financial nssets under FVTPL eategory are mitinlly recognised at fair value. Transaction coat
will be directly recorded in the smtermment of profit and loss pocount. These aaséts are
subsequently measured at fair valoe with changes recorded in the statement of profit and loss
sccount. Interest / dividend income on these assets are recognised in the statement of profit and
lass account. On derecognition of these fimancial nssets, capital gain / boss will be recognised in
the statenvent of profit and loss sccount. An expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is not
recognised for these financial assets.

Page - 20



£.1.1.5 Derecognition

Financial aisets

The Bank derecounises a financial asset when:

= the contractual rights 10 the cash flows from the financial asset expire;

- it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which either:

= substantially all of the risks and rewnrds of ownership of the financial asset are transferred;

ar
- the Bank neither transfers nor retuins substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not reinin control of the financial anset.

The Bank enters into tramsactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of
financial position, but retning either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
tromaferred assets. In these cased, the transferred assets are nol derecognised.

Financial linbilities

The Bank derecognises a financial lishility when its contractusl obligstions are dischorged or
cancelled, or expired. The Bank also derecognises a financial liability when its terms age
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. in which case a
new fimancinl linbility tused on the modified terms is recognised ot fair value.

On derecognition of a financial lability, the difference between the carrying Amount
extinguished and the consideration pald (inchuding aoy non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed)) is recognised in the financial statemment of profit and loss account.

5.1.1.6 Modification

The Bank sometimes renegotistes or otherwise modifies the contraciual cash flows of financing
10 its customers. The Bank asseases whether the modifled terms result in the financinl asset
being significantly modified and thercfore derecognised. When the contractual cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotinted or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or modification
does not resull in the derecognition of that financial asset in accordance with IFRS 9, the RBank
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and shall recognise a modification
guin or loss in statement of profit end loss sccount. The gross carmying amount of the financial
asset is recalculated s the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows
that are discounted a1 the financial asset's original effective interest rate (or credit-adjosted
effective imerest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assels). Any costs or
fees incurred adjust the carying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over
the remaining term of the modified Mnancial asset,
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511 Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

The Bank assesses on n forvard-looking basis the expected crodit losses (ECL") associated with
all advances and other debt (nancial assets not held st FVTPL, together with letter of credit,
puamntees and unutilised financing commitments bereinafier referred to as "Financial
Instruments”. The Bank recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date, The
measurement of ECL reflecta:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible puicomes;

- the time value of money; and

- reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting dste shout past events, current conditions and forecasts of fiture economic

The ECL allowance is based on the creclit losses expected 1o arise over the life of the asset (the
lifatime expected cradit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit
loss (12mECL). The 12mECL Is the poriion of LTECLs that represent the FCLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date. Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated ot facility level.

The Bank has cstablished a policy w0 perform an assessment, ot the end of cach reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument's credin risk bhas incressed significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default ocowrring over the remaining life of
the financial instrument. The Bank considers bn exposure to have signiflcantly increased in
credit risk when there s considerable deteriomation in the mternal rating prade for subject
customer, The Bank also applics a secondary qualitative method for triggering 2 significant
increase in credit risk for an neset, such as moving a customer / facility 1o the watch list, or the
pecount becoming forborne. Regandless of the change in credit grades, generally, the Bank
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contctual payments are
more than 60 days past due. When estimating ECLs on a collective busis for a group of similar
nssets, the Rank applies the similar principles for assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit nsk since initial recogmition.

Based on the sbove process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage |, Swage 2 and Siage 3, m
described below:
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Stage 1t

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

Undrawn
financing

When financial imstruments are first recognised, the Bank recognises an
allowance based on |2mECLs. Stage | financial instruments also include
facilitics where the credit risk has improved and these have been reclnssified
from Stage 2. The 12ZmECL is calculnted as the partion of LTECLs that represent
the ECLs that resulf from defauli evenis on & financial imsirumend that are
possible within the 12 months afier the reporting date, The Bank calculates the
1ZmECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12
months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default
probabilities are applicd to a forecast Exposure At Defauli (EAD) end multiplied
by the expected LGD nnd discourted by an approximation to the original
Effective Interest Rate (EIR). This calculation is made for all the scenarios.

When a financial instrument has shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 1 also
mmcludes facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the instrument has
been reclassified from Stage 3. The mechanics are similar 1o those explained
above, including the use of multiple scenarios, but PDs are applied over the
lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash flows are discounted by an
approximation to the original EIR.

For financial instruments considered credit-impaired, the Bank recognises the
LTECLs for these instrumenis. The Bank uses 8 PD of 100% and LGD as
computed for each portfolio or as prescribed by the SBP.

When cstimating LTECLs for undrawn financings commitments, the Bank
estimntes the expected portion of the financings commitment that will be drawn
down aver its expected life. The ECL & then based on the present valug of the
expected cash flows if the financings is drawn down, based on a probability-
wrighting of the three scenarios. For revolving facilities that Include both a
financings and an umdriown commitment, ECla we calculmted on an-drawn
porion of the facility and presemted within other habilities.

Guarantee  The Bank estimates ECLs based on the BASEL driven and internally developed
and betters of credit coaversion factor (CCF) for puaranice and letter of credit contracts

credit respectively. The calculation 1w made using a probability weighting of the three
contracts soenarios. The ECLs related 1o guaransee and letter of credit contracts ane
The ealeulntion of ECLs

The Bank calculaies ECLs based on n three probability-weighted scenarios (o measure the
expected cash flows, discounted at an approximation 1o the EIR.
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The mechanice of the ECL calculations ure outlined below and the key clements are, as follows:

Fi»

LD

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of defiault over a given
time horizon. A defsult may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the facility has not been previously derecopnised and is still in the
portfolio. PD is estimated based on transitioning among credit states. Credit
states are defined by rating classes and arc based on the Bank's internal risk
ratings (i.e. from | to 12). Through the vesrdy review of the non-consumer
portfolio, the Bank has drawn a yearly transition mairix of ratings to compuie a
count based PD over the one year horizon for the last 11 years. PDs for Non
muded portfolios are caloulated based on Days Past Due (DFD) bucket level for
each segment sepamtely, Where practical, they also build on information from
External Rating Agencies. PDs are then adjusted for IFRS 9 ECL calculations to
incorporate forward looking information.

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimaie of the exposure of a future default
date, iaking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and peofit, whether scheduled by contract
or otherwise, expected drawdowns on commitied facilities, and accroed tnteres /
profit from missed payments. The maximom period for which the credit losses
are determined s the contractual life of a financial instrament unless the Bank
has a legal right 1o call it carfier. The Bank's product offering includes a variety
of corporate and retsil facilities, in which the Bank has the right to cancel and /
or reduce the facilities with one day notice. However, in case of revolving
facilities, the Bank does not limit its exposure 1o credit losses to the contractual
notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over s period that reflects the Bank
expeciations of the customer behaviour, lis likelibood of defauli snd the Bank
future risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the
facilities.

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a
defoult occurs ot & given time. It is based on the difference berween the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD.

The discount rate used to discount the ECLs in based on the effective interest miz that js
expected to be charped over the expected period of exposure 1o the facilities. In the absence of
computation of the effective interest rate (a2 reporting date), the Bank uses an approximation
e.g contractual rate (s reporting date).

Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futre cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the finencial asset or financinl lisbilities w0 the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or 1o the amortised cost of & financial Liability.
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To matigate ils credit risks on financial msets, the Bank secks 1o wse collaternl, where possible.
The Bank considers only those collaterals as eligible collaterals in the EAD calculation which
have the following charscteristics:

- History of legal certamty and enforceability
- History of enforceability and recovery

When estimating the ECLs, the Bonk considers three scenarios (o base case, o besl case, 8 worst
case). Each of these i5 associated with different PDs.

The Bank's management has only considered cash, Bguid securities, and Government of
Pakistan gunrantees as eligible collaterals, while calculating EADs.

The credit exposures (in local currency) that have been guaranteed by the Covernment and
Government Securities are exempted from the application of ECL calculation.

Forward losking information

In jts ECL models, the Bank relies on range of the following forward looking information as
economic imputs, such as:

- GDP Growth
=  Consumer Price Index
= Unemployment rale

Definition of defaull

The concepl of * impairment * or “default® is critical 1o the implementation of IFRS 9 as it
drives determination of risk parumeters, i.e. PD, LGD and EAD.

As per BPRD Circular No. 03 of 2022 dated July 05, 2022 and BPRD Circular Letter No, 16 of
2024 dated July 29, 2024, ECL of Stage | and Stage 2 is calculsted as per [FRS 9, while ECL of
Stage 3 has been calculated basad on higher of Prudential Regulations or IFRS 9 &t bomower /
facility level for corporate / commercial / SME loan portfolios and at segment / product basis
for retail portfolio.

This implies that if one facility of a counterparty becomes %0+ DPD in repaying its contractoal
dues or ns defined in PRx; all other facilities would deem 1o be classified ns stage 3.



Wrile-offs

The Bank's accounting policy under [FRS 9 remains the same &8 it was under SBP regulations /
existing reporting framework.

024 2023
oo Hupees im M- ———
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
i hand
Local cusrency [ TREL 810,474
Foreign currency 1019 108 066
B69. 574 215,540
With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account 6.1 1,636,736 1,371,084
Foreign currency current account 6.2 125,156 188,610
Foreign currency deposil accounls
- gash reserve account 6.3 58T 59473
= specaal cash reserve account 6.4 120,739 117,044
1,941,405 1,737,011
With National Bank of Pakistian in
Local currency cument accounts 175671 269872
Prive bonds 455 1,794

2,987,105 2928217

Lesa: Credit loss allowance held against cash and
balances with treasury banks = :

Caih gnd balances with redasory banks - pet of
credit loss allowance I_Z..m 2,928,217

These accounts are maintained with the SBP 1o comply with the statstory cash reserve
This represents US Diollar collection account maintained with SBP.

This represents account maintained with SBFF w0 comply with cash reserve requirements against
foredn currency deposiis,

Page - 17



8.1

Bl

This represents asccount naintained with SBP w comply with the special cash reserve requirement
against foreign currency deposits, The retum on this account |s declared by the SBP on a monthly
basis and as at December 31, 2024, it carried mark-up ranging from 3 53% w0 4.35% (2023: from
3.3%% 10 4.34%) per anniim.

024 2023
Nile  ——eee-Hupees in 00—
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
In cwrrent aecowunt 2 219
Outside Pakistan
In current account 5897 1,611
6,176 1,891
Less: Credit loss allowance held against balances with other banks - -
Balances with other banks - net of credit loss allowance E'i‘.l'ﬁ IIIF'I
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Call / clean money lendings Bl 464,027 914,089
Reverse repo agreements B3 - 1.107,344

464,027 2021433

Less: Credit loss allowance held against lending to

financial instiubons B4 (64,081) (139,089
Lendings to financial institutions - net of credit loss
allowance IWE‘HE- !E!e-ﬂ

This inclodes financing amounting 10 s, 64 million thai matured on December 31, 20012, Duc to
defwult in repayments, full provision has been made against these amounts. Lendings were in local

CLITENCY
Particulars of lending

In local currency 464,027 2,021,433

In foreign currencies - H
—taT, 203

Page - 18



8.3  Securities held as collateral against Lending to Mnancial institutions

s

it T
ey '_"' _‘_“"": Towl | ey ek |TSEV gy
!!_Ell‘ﬂ
Mebarkiet Troasary il T T e
Pl Imessmn Bomds 2000 000 00 D0
Totsl 1,387 344 10807 5
Lending to Financial institutions - Particalars of credit loss allowance
Crudit ioas Credin s
Londing b e Bl Lanliog aliowance heid
Rugwes i ‘000
[rimmy i
Peribvining Seage | A0 e £t 1 EE2 b
Under performing  Stege 2 . = .
Non-perivemng Suge
Snbiylandad = .
Bxaiheiia . : = 5
T &, 7 o 227 L3080 i
£,07) BiEIT  LWORD 110089
Tista 64 077 S4081 2031433 130,069
g
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Totud
Repees in '

Ralsrce @l e st of 5 yenr - . 39088 139,049
lrgynet o mboption of TR - 0 T » . 54
Transiy o sige | 3 5 z :
Transker w smpe 2 = - - =
Trwnuils o wmpe § - » : .
St rereansemen of credi his slbwance L] - 1anss 3%, 143
Fimncil sisets thal hone been devecognised - - (75,062} (75,063}
Eakesce of the arad of e year 5d = 84037 64,081

L =
_Sugel  Swgel  Swge3 ol
Rapeed in 008
Balsse ol the wen of O yer 119 OER | 30 aEa
Ipact of adoption of TFRS - § ; i
Trmnsisr o sugs | - -
Tr-'-ﬁ"h-.i . -
Trmnaler io wiage 3 = =
S i pAeEE i o e s s lEearcc (BT L] | 33 00%
Financal misety thit have been devecognied - - -
Habace o the e of Se year | 30 ARG | 3 0D
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11.16

1LLY

* At cost due 10 the rensons given below, Amounts are not considered 10 be material,

This property is under litigation as various complaints were lodged apainst the Bank to Sindh
Building Control Authority (SBCA) on the grounds that the property is being used for
commercial purpose contrary to its legal stalus as a residential property and that floor plams of
the first and second floors of this property are not approved by the relevant authorities. SBCA
issued motice 1o the Bank for illegal constroction & 1w demolish it The Bank filed & Suil for
Permanent [njunction before n Civil Judge againat the SBCA while informing the court that it
has taken necessary action for the regularization and bringing the construction existing on the
Bank's property within the parameter stipulsted by SBCA. However, since the notification for
regularization of the construction has been suspended consequent o the Constitutional Petition
no. D-40872012 pending before High Court of Sindh, Karachi, the Bank became a party 1o the
Constinstional Petition and moved a sine-die application before [V-Senior Civil Judge
Consequently, the procesdings of the case pending before TV-Senior Civil Judge were adjourned
sine-die till the decision of Constitational Petition no. D-40872012 pending before the High
Count of Sindh. The Bank's desling legal counsel has confirmed that the Bank is not likely o
suffer amy loss in the casc.

The property was awarded to the Bank by the Govemment of Pakistan for the purpose of
carrying out Bank's business. The Bank has not utilized this property and is idle. Therefore, the
Bank's management had decided to sell the property after oltaining prior approval from the
Government of Pakistan. However, the Bank has not been able 10 secure the approval of
Government of Pakistan because of Supreme Court of Pakistan's restraining order in suo moto
case no. 16/2011 which prohibits the sale/transfes/mutstion of state lands till further order. Suo
moto case was initinted by the Supreme Court of Pakistan as multiple cases were reported in
which government properties were being illegally transferred in fake deals Since the property is
idie, the Bank has obtained extension in time specified in Section 10 of the Banking Companzes
Ordinance, 1962 for holding of idie properties from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBIF) and the
SBP has allowed the Bank to retain the property st Mirpurkhas till the order in so0 moto case
no, 162011 remains elfective.

This represent temporarily idle property for which extension in time specified in Section 10 of
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 for holding of such properties has been obmined by
the Bank from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Kohat property has been written down 10 book
vilue of Re. | owing 10 difficulties faced by the Bank in disposing off the said property and the
SBP has allowed the Bank to retain the property 1l the situation is favourable for sale of this
property.
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11.1.9 The land at Nawabshah was granted 1o the Bank for the construction of bank building on the

12

13

131

directives of Chief Minister Sindh. However, a person (the Party) illegally raised claim on the
property and illegally transferred the property to two persons. This was contended by the Bank
in the Court of 15t Senior Civil Judge, Nawnbshah and the suit was decreed in Bank's favour.
The Party filed appeals up to Supreme Court level but all the appeals are dismissed. Afler
dismissal of appeal from the Supreme Court, the Bank's decree atiained finality. Consequently,
execution application was filed by the Bank to execute the Judgment Decree requiring revenue
authorities 1o demarcate the land and issue title documents in the name of the Bank. No
decision has vet been issued in respect of the execution application 1o date and the Bank does
not have possession of this property. The Bank is still pursuing this matter and the Bank's
lawyer responsible for the concermed matter is of the view that the Bank's interest is sufficiently
secured with no hikelthood of any apparent loss. The property & recorded at Ra. 125,000 being
the amount of lease money deposited with Municipal Commitee, Nawabshah. Accordingly. due
1o the above reasons, and in view of the uncertainty still involved, the Bank has not revalued the
above land.

2024 2023
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS Buildings

At January 01,

Cost 395,230 603,777
Accumulamed Depreciation (300,3508) (416,829)
Net Carrying amount a1 January (1, 94,722 186,948
Additions during the wear 35,895 312,235
Reazsesemant 253,272 -
Deletions during the year - .
Depreciation Charge for the year 30 (135,702) (124.461)
Net Carrying amounl a1 December 31 248,237 94,722

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capital work-in-progness 131 19,770 18,118
Computer Software 132 28317 27,447
48,087 43,563
Capital work-in-progress
Software up gradation (sdvance 10 the consultant) 1970 1L118




MNuole

132 Computer Software

113

14

At 1| January 01,

Cost
Accumulaied amoitastion and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 31,
Opening net book value
Additi
Amaortisation charpe 30
Closing net book value

At December 31,
Cost

Accumulnied amorfisation and impamrment
et book value

Rate of amorimation {percentnge)
Liseful life m years

024 023
menmns R ppes 1 e
Buildings
194 889 176,981
{16T,442) (150,887)
27447 26,094
27447 26,094
21,406 17,907
(20.536) _(16,554)
28317 27447
216.29% 194,589
(18797T) (167,442
28,317 27447

10-33%

As ol 1] December 2024, the cost of fully emortised intangible assets still in use amounied to

Rs. 16925 million (2023: Rs. 88.367 million).

Nate
OTHER ASSETS

Income’ Mark-up accrued in local currency
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments
Advance tnation

Branch adjustment account

Accepiances

Buspense Boeotint

ATM settlement account

Government securities

Receivable agminst encashment of instruments
Sinticnary & stamps on hand

Cribers

Less: Credit loss allowance held against other assets  14.1
Orther assets (Net of credit loss allowance)

Page - 44

2024 b1 PR
Rupees in "0
| B62 692 2,874,460
204418 162,016
17.920 =
323 11,360
. 8,009
k1] -
60,652 45,515
- 9,508,200
417 -
T.869 10,231
!:'F“ %
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1.

15

17

17.1

Credit loss allowance held against other assets

Advances, deposits, advance renl & other prepayments
Non banking asscts acquired in salisfaction of claims

Others (i be specified if material)

CONTINGENT ASSETS

Mole

2024 3
Rupes in ' 000-——
: 48,169

There were no contingent assets of the Bank as at December 31, 2024 (December 31, 2023
Nil). However, several recovery suits has been filed by the Bank,

BILLS PAYARLE

In Pakisian
Dutside Pakistin

BORROWINGS

Secured
Bomowings from State Bank of Pakistan
Under expart refinance scheme
Under revised SBP Financing Scheme for
Under Refmance & Credin Guaranics Scheme
for Women Enterprencurs (RCWE)
in underserved areas
Under Refinance & Credit Guarantee Scheme
for Solar Energy
Under Refinance & Credit Guaraniee Scheme
for Special Persons
Under Temporary Economic Refinance Facility

Repurchase Agreement Borrowing

Particulars of borrowings in respect of currencies

In local currency
In foreign currencies

174

175

134,819 143,626

234 819 H!iﬁlﬁ

000, O 850,000
23,359 12,455

18226 17,083

- 18279

51 TiR

_ sspn| ssaoe
1166978 1472818
26,880,440 31,150,000

28.047.418 31612818

IR047T A8 32622818
TS T IS 1T



172

173

174

175

The Bank has entered into mmangement for financing with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBF)
under Revised SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy. As per the armngement, the
Bank has granted SBP the right to recover the outstanding amount from the Bank at the dote of
madurity of the finance by directly debiting the current account maininined by the Bank with
SBP. This carries mark-up rate of 3% per anoum (2023: 3% per annum). These borrowings are
repayable up o November 2025.

These borrowings have been obtained from SBP under the refinance and credit guaramtee
scheme for women entreprencurs in underserved areas for setting up of new units and meet
credit needs of business, The borrowings are repayable in equal quanterly installments afier
grace period if any and does not ooty any interest. The rate of markup for end users under the
facility is up 1o 3% per smoum. The loss, if any, includes risk coverage of 60% of the
outstanding principal by the State Bank of Pakistan.

The Bank has entered mnto armangement for financing with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for
extending Temporary Economic Refinance Facility 1o customers. As per the arrangement, the
Bank has granted SBEP the right 1o recover the outstanding amount from the Bank st the date of
maturity ol the finance by directly debiting the current account maintaimed by the Bank with
SBP. This carmies mark-up rate of 3% per anmum

This carries mark-up rate upto 13.10% per annum (2023: 22.11% per snnum ). The borrowing
is repavable up o January 01, 2024 (2025 January 01, 2024). This bomowing 1 secuncd
against goverument securities having carrying value of Ra.27.100 Billions (2023: Rs.31.150
Billion),

DEFOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2034 ]
lu sl lo Fomwign lm Lt Fm Furnign
Catrenry carresries L Cuisenry  swrre mrkew o
AW vgarrs b 0]
I o 3
TEE AEmecay TEELIm . TAXIEN || SiTeTIs . NN
Smrwgn dvpsnen 7900 2l FILIST § IZELEIT | 1077 RE 9T | | TR ITE
e mpsennen - s 4T A&E diEEh l ATTTRED || om0 ed 6140 || eI
Crfisgrn. 44T AN
MLIT].9E] B MOEIn  WAdLan 452001  NLATRLINE
i bt | | e
Tt degaaia (FI : e 111 s . (RIE ]
s g e LT FH] . AALAX] LNT - . LT,
Cuffoall muccomiin - o faEm# ko ] 1) . T RN . (AT =]
1 . BT A s KT
L2 1. 1 bl EE
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18.1

182

1%.1

Compaesition of depasits

+ Individuals

- Government (Federal and Provincial)
- Publsz sector entities

- Non-banking financial institations

= Private sectar

2024 1013
-——m 1] 1| | SRR

13,819,628 12,712,748
10,720,787 13,690,746
1,109,303 568,004
671,671 259,048
5,278,633 4,101 Em
] I Imulu!!

Deposits inchudes cligible deposits of Ra. 17,035 million (2023: Ra. 15,257 milkion) which are
coversd under deposit profection mechamsm as required by the Deposit Protection Comporation

circular no 4 of 201 8.

LEASE LIARILITIES

Outstnding amount at the begining of the year
Additions during the year
Adjustment during the year

Lease payments including mmicresi

Interest expense
Dutstnnding amount st the end of the wear

Contractual maturty of lease labilities

Short-term lease labilities - within one venr
Long-term lease liabilities
= | 10 5 years

- 5 1o 10 years
= More than 10 vears

Total lesse linbilities

Page - 47

238425 264,582
22,000 -
108,127 -
(145,144)  (B0,083)
54,519 53,926
I RS
97,813 19,779
157 183,921
2428 34,725
THITA TTH
TSI T IAS
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3 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

2

1024
Ad Jmmsmry | H..LA.':'” . |m||hlh At Bee 3
————Rupees s 90—
Dieducalvle / flasable | iempomany dffrences an-
- Lumse bty - net pTROLA 6,724) 2950 i6.743)
- Rurpilim oo eesnlanbop af
Ediings ([ N1 & winw {1.938) IT3434
leTvziusenes 38 509 - i, etk 65T
- Remennreneat loay on defied benels oblgamms [} &erl - {15,034} (8 30
Nt ddy frrvnd tan kit I 77,50 170 FETETE]
b )
At Jamsary | T&:' .""'gn'"" Ak Dex 31
—Hupees i W
Deuhuciitdle | ikaxabie) evmporany differsnces on
 Lrnse bty - nes of ROAIA 0821 (1&MT) HE.TH)
= Burphn on srvalmtion o
Mialings WiLa7 344105 b B b &%, 103
s e T s Baliy] - &0 B 1555
- Remeasrmens bws on Sefned hemelt obligton 5,908 . 11,79% TRs
Nt iheferved tny Bslility 3424 {21, KRE) 145,341 1774608
Kike. e
ol in rrnssaes
OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up’ Returm’ Interest pavable In local curmency 1,848,063 2,751,911
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 2434 5,518
Acerued expenses 287,158 193,511
Current taxation - 12,424
Acceplances - 8,005
Payable under a defined beneflt scheme 7.140 7.140
Pavable to staff retirement defined benefit plans 31,633 30,10
Provision for employees' compensated nbsences 69,161 65,720
Provident fund payable 10 the members 211 4,790 4,802
Siafl Welfare Fund T82 ™2
Benevolent fund balance (being refunded to
the employees) 1,058 1,058
Credin loss allowance agninst off-balance sheet 2.2 44,449 34,087
Payable agalnst purchase of fixed assets 2,706 1,840
Clearing procesds awaiting clearance 114 -
Payable against collection and withholding tax - 35,137
Others Iﬂliﬂ iiﬂlﬁ
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21,1 This represents the provident fund balance paynble 1o the members of the Provident Fund. The
Fund was discontinued in o previous vear and the balance im its reconds were transferred 1o the

Bank for onwards settlement to the members.

Nole
212 Credit loss allawance against ofT-balance sheet abligations

Opening balance
Impact of adoption of [FRS-9 5.1

b | 2023
‘IPH‘I: [T 11| ——
34,087 106,087
39,717 4

E,r\n;ﬂl;. e L_J.‘ﬂ:HﬁI !;%mu}

—_— o

i1 SHARE CAPITAL

21.1 Aathorized capital

x4 1023 2024 2023
e Numbe r of shares j—— e {Ruipie's in "000}—
00000000 SSSO0L000, Qedlumy shums offi. Vv oweh ___ 6000000680000
22.1  lssued, subseribed and paid up eapital
24 2013 024 023
e N b ¢ of s hares j—— e M pe ey b 000 e

Circlirary shares of B3 10/= each
IM 365000 334365000 - Fulypald incash
65,046,250 65046250 - lssued as borus shares

3.343 650 3.343,650
630,463 fi50, 4463

!HIIII.JH 30411250

1.984.113 1954.113

213 Sharehikbem (nssocisied i e riakings )

24

w1 of -F'Hnﬂp-ll'
shared belil  shairhokling
B

Federal Covernment of Pk stan froogh

Mumber el  Perceniage of
whared held w b helifing
]

Sdinmiry of Fimewe ¥ 30,088, T Eled  3I00ER VY LRl
MCH Bank Limissi 23,098,224 im 13098 T4 i
Habk Eank L enisd 23,095,124 in 25,095.54 L
Alled Bank Limied TR 184 T 184
Narional Bank of Mokt TEOE 441 1.93 TR 441 .93
LUnibed Bank Limded TE98.441 .9 TEM A4 1.9

A1 25 100,00 39841 ltﬁﬂ' 106,00
!"I’I =




2024 023
Mote ~——--—Rupees in "HH--—e—

23 SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) ON

REVALUATION OF ASSETS
Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of
= Becurities memsared mt FVOCT - Debt 2.1 159,217 93614
= Property and equipment 23.1 494,350 01,748
653,617 595 3482
Less: Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:
- Securities measured at FVOCT - Debt 66,875 16,509
- Property and equipment 166,063 169, 184
232 968 HA5.693

201 Surplus an revaluation of property anid equipment

Surplus on revalustion of property and
equipment as ot Jamuary 01, 501,748 329,062
Recognised during the vear 2 186,637
Transferred 1o unappropriated profit i respect of
incremental depreciation charged during the year (4.267) (8.510)
Relawed deferred tax Hability on incromental
depreciation charged during the year (3,091) (5,441)
Surplus on revaluation of property and =
equipment as at December 31, 494 390 501,74%
Less: refated deferred tax liability on:
- revaluation as at January 01, 169,184 101,837
- revaluation recognised during the vear - 11748
- incremental depreciation charged during the yvear (3,091) (5.441)
166,093 169,184
BT SIISET

4 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

= Cruaraniess 241 1,255,502
- Commitments 242
- Dther contingent linbilities M43

1,310,519
432,188
B39.4T3

24.1  Guaranbess;

Performance guaramice 1,255,002 10,519




Naote

Commitments:

Documentary credits and shor-term trade-related tmnsactions
- letters of eredit

Commitments for sequisition of-
- Fixed assety
= [ntangible pssets

Other contingent liabilities

These mainly represent counter ¢laims by borrowers for damages due 1o the legal action and
reputational damages they face while proceedings of recovery and related criminal suits on
them and other clabms sgainst the Bank Mansgement is confident that the maners will be
decided in the Bank's favour. Accordingly, no provision has been made in financial statements.
Commitments (o extend lendings

The Bank makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these
being revocable commitments do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is
unilaterally withdrawn

Contingency for tax payahle

There were ho tax related contingencies other than as disclosed in note 33,

MARK-UF/ RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

Loans and advances 1407 647 1,095 986
[nvestmenits Q475,662 10,148 930
Lendings to financial institutions 1,70 222616
Balance with banks 5,072 10,285

I!E&lil 12477.812

MARK-UP /| RETURN / INTEREST EXPFENSED
Deposits 4977262 4528810
Borrowings 4,424,062 1 R20.994
Finance cosl on bease lability against right-of-use assets 4.519 53,926
0.4 3 10 LE]
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17  FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

28.1

8.2

2.1

023

Note ————Rupees in "000——

Branch banking customer fees 29,751 30.643
Consumer finamce relnted foes 3,767 4,073
Card related fees (debit and credii cards) 14,373 16,487
Credit related froes 1,058 1573
Commission on trade B.757 13,168
Commission on guaraniees 15878 12353
Commisgion on hancassurance 1,263 E5%
Cthers 3 2l 14
76,771 81,929
LOSS ON SECURITIES
Realised 281 I II‘I']EI E!Et
Realised lois on:
Federal government securitics lliml FE
Net loss on financial assets/ labilities
measured af FVFL:
Net loss on financial Securities mansdstorily
measured at FVPL - -
Met loss on inancial assets (debt instraments)
measured st FVOCT (1.936) 277N
i II'E'J-EI E!H
OTHER INCOME
Gain on sale of property and equipment-net 11 197
Tender fee received 168 307
Recovered from emplovees sgainst 1,568
unserved notkce period 1358
Renssesament of lease %1 114,391 -
Orthers 3 2
IIEI}I &

Thin represents the rearrangements/updates in the relevant rent agreements of the branches of
the Bank.
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024 2023
Notle Rupees in 000 eeee e
3 OFERATING EXPENSES
Total campensation expense 30.1 741,503 794,290
Property expense
Rent & taxes iy 38,073 |
Insurance 46,411 40,386
Uilities cost 95,245 81,391
Security (including guards) 70,001 60,008
Repair & maintenance (including janitorial charges) 45,032 41,414
Deprecintion on property and equipment 11.1 nzn 124,461
Depreciation on fighi-of-use assels 12 135,702 21,025
429 366 423 858
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 62,791 51,718
Hurdware maintenance 80,158 62,116
Depreciation 1.1 17.011 23710
Amortisation 132 20,536 16,554
180,49 152,758
Chther operaling expenses R
Directors’ fees and allowances 41.3 2,163
Legal & professional charges 18,269
Outsvurced services cosls 30,2 5,234
Travelling & conveyance 12,808
NIFT clearing charges 6,160
Depreciation 7052
Training & development 563
Postage & courser charges 5,980
Communication 49,383
Stationery & printing 21,820
Marketing, sdvertisement & publicity 3,804
Entertainment 10,639
Membership and subscriptions 2,899
Audiiors Remuncration 303
Others




30.1 Total compensation expense

Fees and allowances etc
Managerial remuneration

Fixed

Variable

n) Cash bonus / pwards eic.

b} Bonus & awards in shares etc,
Charge for defined benefit plan
Contribution 1o defined contribution plan
Rent & house maintenance
Utilities

Medical

Conveyvance

Coln allowance

Cola - region

Compensatory allowance
Compensatory allowance- region
Car monetization allowance

Car monctization allowance- region
Telephone allowsnce

2024 2013
Note ~—=—==—-Rupees in "$00———

14924 15,427
286,770 300,864
112,452 177,656
20,384 19,882
4,660 6,786
108,004 101,003
27,766 26,403
35,957 331,550
54,258 53,001
17,640 19,624
2079 2984
4,721 4,568
2778 2.947
19,705 19,165
6022 4388
2,340 2,308

Others I.ﬁ ]ﬂi

30,2 This pertains to payment {0 companiés incorporated in Pakistan.

303 Aunditors” remunerstion

Audit fee 11,000 110,000
Specinl certifications and sundry advisory services 400 (2]
Dui-of-pocket expenses 00 4K}
JJ

3 OTHER CHARGES
Penalties imposed by Sinte Bank of Pakistan 155 1.234
135 1.3

32  CREDIT LOSS AL LOWANCE & WRITE OFFS - NE

Reversal / net credit loss allowance ( proviston against

loans snd ndvances 104 (46,4200 255875
Met reversal of eredit loss allowance asainst
to financial institutions g4 {75,008) .
Reversal - athers (41,061) (20.590)
Provision against off balance sheet obligations 5 (72,000)
(162.489) 163,285
Page - 54
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2024 023
Nate soeeeesecscRupees i 000
TAXATION
Current 139,538 157.0M6
Prior vears a -
Defiermed 49,& {21,888)

S [/ W18

Reconciliation of tax charge 1o the accounting income is not presented 55 the current tax charge
is under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

While finaliring the assessments for tax years from 1997 1o 2000 and from 2004 10 2008
(financial years ended from December 31, 1996 1o December 31, 1999 and from December 31,
2003 to December 31, 2007 respectively), the tax authorities, from time to time, made certain
disallowances of nostro sccount balances written off, apportionment of expenses, interest
suspended etc., ngainst which appeals were filed by the Bask st the Appellate Tribunal Inkand
Revenue (ATIR).

The ATIR vide its order dssed May 31, 2012 decided all the matiers (except disallowance of
written off of nostro balances, interest suspended and apportionment of expenses) for 1ax years
from 2004 1o 2008 in favoer of the Bank against which CIR had filed an appeal in the Sindh High
Court (SHC) which is pending for hearing.

Further, the matter of nostro balances written off was remanded back by ATIR to the CIR
whereas the matter of apportionment of expenses and interest suspension have been disallowed
against which the Bank has filed an appeal in SHC, which is pending adjudicstion. Tax smount
mvolved is Re 10.769 million. The management is confident that the decision in appeals
{including those filed by CIR as explained above) would be in its favour. However, for abundant
caution, provision of aforesaid amount is being maintained by the Bank.

The Income Tax department has issued orders under sections 161 and 205, raising demands due
1o the non-deduction of tux on profit payments on certaln deposits [or the tax vears 2014, 2015,
2016, and 2017, respectively. In accordance with prudent accounting practices, provisions have
been established for the tax years for which decisions are pending.
024 013
Note S |

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit for the year 79,088 322,168
SN S 9 ——
Weighted avernge number of ordinary shares 399411 199,411

Page - 35
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2024 2023
Note ——————{Rupest}——
Basic eamings pet share 0.198 0.807
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit fior the year 79,088 331,165
S, T S—
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 399411 399411
—eeme—f Rupees pomeeeees
Diluted earnings per share 0.198 0.81
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash snd balances with treasury banks & 2.987,105 2928217
Balances with other banks 7 6,176 1891
- > 1 1. | —— X IIN L. 1
024 2013
Lease Liahilithes
(s in '000)

Reconciliation of movement in labilities to cash MNows arising from financing activities

Balance as &1 Jonuary 01, 138425 264 382
Payment against |lcase liabilines - net (145,144) (80,083 )
Addition io lease Habilibes - net 130,127 .
Finance charges on leased liabilities 54,519 53,926
Balance as st December 31, 211927 238425
STAFF STRENGTH

Permanent 398 421

On bank contract 65 6l

Bank's own staff strenyth at end of the year -—-——ﬂl- _J-
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In addition 1o the sbove, Nil (2023: Nil) employees of oulsourcing ssrvices companics were
msigned o the Bank ns st the end of the vear o perform services other (han guarding and
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

Cieneral description

The Bank operates an approved pension fund and an approved gratuity fund for its emplovees as
explained in note 4.10 to these financial statements.

Number of emplovees under the schemie

024 2023
e B 11T 1) 13 4 SR RRER PR
Pension fund 38 39
Giratuity fund 424 44
Principal actuarial assumptions
The octmarial valusthons were carried oul i s Decomber 31, 2024 uming the following
significant assumptions:
2024 023
== Per annum —
Discount rate 12.25% 15.500%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 10.25% 13.50%
Expected rate of salary increase 10.25% 13.50%
Expected rate of increase in persion 4.25% 7.50%
Mortality rate (SLIC {2001-05)-1 (SLIC (2001-05)-1
Rate of employee tumover Light Light

Reconciliation of (receivable from) / pavahbe to defined bemefit plans

224 2023
Prensisn Fosd G rotsity Fusd Peasios Fosld  Gretolty Foond
e (Rmpren i
F“rlﬁﬂlﬂ'ﬁ:hlhtﬂﬂl_ﬂ- X2 437 07T [0 EEY 77048
Fair vahee af pian sspem (230,156)  (47403)  (189.800) (89,588}
iRecenable) - payshie (17,71 #i7 1079 T8
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Funding Policy
The Bank has the policy to make annual contributions to the fund based on actuarial report.

Significant risk associated with the staff retirement benefit schemes include:

P Almost all the Fund Is in a liquel position with the Bank gving rise o)
significant reinvestment risk. There is no equity or corpormte bond exposure.

"M s, no equity or setilement risk.

I-Thnﬂmm:ﬂtuﬂml benefit is discounted with reference to the bond|

m lyields. So, any increase in Bond yields will lower the Lisbility and vice versa,
but, it will slso lower the Asset values if they are invested in the bonds.

The salary inflation (especially the final salary risk) is the major risk that the

retirement beneflit lability casrigd. In a general economic tense and in o longer

view, there is a case that if bond yvields increase, the change in salary inflation|

generally offsets the gains from the decrease in discounted gratuity hability.

:;:.H." (But viewed with the fact that, asset values will also decrease; the salary

' inflation does, as an overall affect, increases the net lability of the Bank.
(Further, there is also a risk of pension increases on pension Hability, however,
this is n controlled nak as annual pension ncreases are allotted by the Bank and|
the Trustees.

Life The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed

. {mortality. This effect depends on the beneficiaries' service / age distribution
expecinncy Nland the benefits. The risk of higher or lower withdrawl experience than
assumed. The final effect could go either way depending on the beneficiaries’
service / age distribution and the benefit

UNFUNDED GRATUITY

The Bank used 1o operate an unfunded gratuity armngement for it ex-Premdent. The linbility
determined in secondance with the terms of the arrangement 85 01 December 31, 2024 was Re
7.140 million (2023: Rs 7.140 milhion). As the amount is not material in relation to the size of

financial statements taken as 8 whole, nctuarial valuation has not been carmied out.
EMPLOYEES COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Hability of the Bank in respect of employees compensated absences is determined hased
onl actuarial valustion carried out using Projecied Unit Credit Method. The liability of the
Bank as per the latest actuarial valuation carried out as af December 31, 2024 amounted to
Ra 69.16]1 million (2023: Ra. 65.720 million). Charge for the vear in respect of these
absences is Re 2.104 million (charge for the year 2023: Rs 12223 million) which is
included in mote 30 1o these financial statements. Discount rate of 12.25% (2023: 15.50%)
and salary increase of 10.25% (2023: 13.50%) per snnum have been used for the above
valustion,
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40.1

The actuarial valustion was carried out as at December 31, 2024 using the following
sipnificant assumptions:

2024 023

Dscount mie 121.25% 15.50%
Expected Long Term retum Not Applicable Not Applicshle
Balary increase
First year 10.25% 13.50%
Second year and onwarnds 10.25% 13.50%
Withdrawal before Normal Retirement Age Ligha Light
Death in services SLIC SLIC (2001-

(2001-05)- 05)-01
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUINTY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):
Eligible Common Equity Tier | (CET 1) Capital
Eligible Additional Tier | {(ADT 1) Capital
Total Eligible Tier | Capital
Eligible Tier 2 Capital
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Assots (RWAs):
Credin Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk
Toial

Commaon Equity Tier 1 capita] adequacy rutio
Tier | capital adequacy mtio
Tonal capital adequacy ratio

Minimum capital requirements preseribed by SHP
Common Equity Tier | Capitml Adequacy ratio
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio
T'otal Capital Adequacy Ratio

Leverage Ratio (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital

Total Exposures
Leverage Ratio

Ligubdity Coverage Rutio (LUR):
Total High Qruality Liquid Assets
Total Net Cash Outflow
Liquidity Coverage Ratio

024

013

Note  ——(Rupees in "000 )

452 2165916 1145044
2,681,455 2,647,289
2,681,455 2,647,289

489,237 459 880
EII ?ﬂﬂ 5lm‘?ilﬂ
5,487,039 5616914
1,332,629 845874
3,177,900 3,168,675
9,997,568 9,631,463
26.82% 27.49%
26.81% 2T4P%
31.71% 32.26%
6.00%% 6.00%
7.500% 7.50%
[B.00%% 18.00%
2,681,455 2,647,289
67,124,022 72,537,260

3.98% 1.65%
28,172,420 15,458,529
10,535 830 11,860,568
267% 130%



45.1

452

2024 2013
ole - Rupees in 000 j—-o
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
Total Available Sthble Funding 31,247,130 199,502,152
Total Required Stable Funding T489,159 T1.615,764
Met Stable Funding Ratio 417% 257%

Bunks uses simple, maturity method and basic indicator approach for credit risk, market risk
and operational risk exposures respectively in the capital adequacy calculation.

Being 3 public sector Bank, and in terms of the State Bank of Pakisian prescribed minimum
capital requirements vide its letser reference BPRDMBAKCPSI732/2014 dated January 01,
2014, the Bank is required to have & minimum paid up capital (net of losses) (MCR) of Rs. 3
billion and capital sdequacy ratio of 18% at all times, subject 10 the condition that MCR level
shall remain enforced until the Bank remains o public sector entity, the Bank will not be
albowed to pay dividend until its paid up capital and reserves reach Rs. 6 hillion and the per
party exposure fimit of the Bank will be 50% of the prudential regulstions limits until the
Bank's paid up capital and reserves reach Rs. 6 billion. At December 31, 2024, Bank's MCR
(representing paid up capital net of sccumulated losses) was Ra. 2.17 hillion..

The full disclsoures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY
REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions issued from time to time are placed on the website,
The link to the full disclosure is available at http./www. fwblcom pl/public-documents/

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Banks's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk, mierest rate risk, and price nsk), liquadity risk, and operational risk.
The Bank's overall risk management program focuses o the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks 1o minimize potential adverse effects on the Banks's financial performance.
Risk managemem is carmied out by the Banks's risk management department under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Effective rishk management is considered essential in the
preservation of the assets and long-term profitability of the Bank. Clear puidelines and limits,
which are under regular review, are backed by & system of imternal controls and independent
nudil mspections. Imiernal reponiing / MIS are additional tools for meansing mod controlling
risks.



d54  Risk Gevernance Structure

The Board is responsible for ensuring active oversight of the implementation of policies and
frameworks to prevent any significant financial loss or reduction in sharcholder value. The
Board manages its responsibility through Board Risk & Compliance Committee (BRCC) which
is essentially a Board-level oversight commitiee that remains updated with regard 10 changes in
the risk management nctivities of the Bank on behalf of the Board and is the highest risk-
relnted policy making and supervising body for all types of risks faced by the Bank, notably
credit, market, liquidity, operational, Information Security and other risks thut may have
material impact aver the Bank's performmnee. BRCC functions under its Terms of Reference
(TORs) duly approved by the Board of Directors.

Risk Manngement Oroup (RMG) operates as an independent group under the supervision of
Chief Risk Odfficer (CRO). RMG's scope and coverage has been enhanced to cater enterprise-
CRO reports directly 10 the President with a dotied line reporting 1o the Board Risk &
Compliance Commitiee (BRCC). The gwoup is responsible for performing the functions
pertaining to development and oversight of the risk framework, methodologies and other
functions assigned from time to time in line with local’ international best practices and under
the ambit of SBP"s regulations’ guidelines,

Risk governance of the Bank is being carmied owl by various management commitiees where
material risks are addressed in more focused terms. These committees’ function under duly
approved Terms of Reference (TORs) 1o oversee various Risk Management activities within
their scope. Enterprise Risk Committee (ERC) for Operational, Strategic, Reputstional, and
other risks; Management Credit Committee (MCC) for Credin Risk, Asset Liability Committee
(ALCO) for Masket & Liquidity Risk, and Compliance Commitice fior Management (CCM) for
Compliance Risk.

Risk Management! Framework

The Bank implements a sk management framework through a Three Lines of Defence’ model
& defines clear responsibilities and accountabilities for various offices and ensures effective &
independent oversight and assurance that the activities ke place & intended.

The Firm Line of Defence: Business groups have primary responsibility for identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling the risks within their areas of sccountability. They are
required 1o implement effective procedures and controls 1o ensure compliance with the relsied
policy requirerents, to maintakn appropriate risk management skills, and 1o act within defined
parmmeters s a set and approved by the Board.



The Second Line of Defence: Primanly Risk Management and the Compliance functions in the
Bank act as second line of defence however other support functions also perform control
effectiveness of risk management actions taken by business groups which are further evalunted
ol Management-leve] Committees.

The Third Line of Defence: Audit & Inspection Group (A&1G) provides independent, objective
assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve nsk management
functions of the Bank, A&IG helps the Bank sccomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic
and disciplined approach to evaluste and improve the effectiveness of risk management,
control, and governance processes,”

The following paragraphs introduce Bank's exposures to material risks assocluted with fs
buszness nctivities and explain overall strtegies and processes 10 manage those risks:

4551 Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk that & customer or counterparty may not settle an obligation for full value,
either when due or a1 any time thereafter, This risk arises from the potential that & customer's or

counterparty's willingness or ability 1o meet such an obligation is impaired, resulting in =
economic loss o the Bank.

The Credit Risk Management process is driven by the Bank's Credit Risk approved by the
BOD. This policy provides guidance in relation 10 credit initiation, approval, documentation
and disbursement, credit maintensnce and remedial management.

Credit approval authorities are based on four eve principal with equal credit authorities given to
both Risk and Business individuals. Head Office Risk Conunifiee is the main credit approval
authority, This committee comprises of CRO, Business Head and the President,

Bank has a Board approved Risk Appetite Ststement sets Credit concentrations Portfolio,
Geographical, Industry as well as [RR based portfolic Management..

455011 Credin risk - general disclosures

The Bank uses reputable and SBP approved rating agencics for deriving risk weight to specific
credit exposures. These are applied consistently across the Bank credit portfolio for both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. The methodology applied for using External
Credit Assessment Institutions (ECATls) inclusive of the alignment of alpha numeric scale of
each agency used with risk bucket is as per SBP guidelines as is given below:

Page-TH




45512 Types of Exposures and ECAL's used

Exposures ICR-VIS PACRA S&P Fitch Moody's
Corporate J s . . -
Banks 1"' v - . -
Sovereign . . . . .
SME's "4 v = % .
“FITCH, Moody's and S&P ratings (as applicable) are used where sovercign exposures are
denominatied in U'SD.

Mapping to SHF Rating Grades

For all exposures, the selected ratings are transiated 1o the stendsrd reting grades given by the

SBP. The mapping tables used for converting ECAl matings to the SBP rating grades are
given below:
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45.5.1.3 Loans mind ndvances

)

Loans and advances are stated net of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) and charged 1o the profit
and Joss.

The Bank only measires loans and ndvances ol amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met.

. The financial ssset is held within & business model with the objective to hold
financial asssts in order to collect contractual cash flows;

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise W contractual cash flows on
specified dntes that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount oulstanding.

Husiness Model Assessment

The Bank pssesses the objective of a business model in which an asset is beld st a portfilio
level bacause this best reflects the way the business 18 mansged and information is provided
1o the management. The information considered Includes:

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely pavments of principal and
inferest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is the fair value of the finsncial asset on initial
recognition. Tnterest’ is the consideration for the time value of money, the credit and other

basic lending risks mssociated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period and other basic lending costs (e.g. liquidity risk and sdministrative costs), along with

profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interess,
the Bank considers the contrachml terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether

the financial asset contains & contractual term that could change the tmmg or amount of
contractual cash fNows such that it would not meet this condition.

Classifleation of lnvesimenis
The Bank currenty classifies its investments as follows:
Fair value through profit and loss

These are investments aoquired principally for the purpose of generating profits from: shor -
term fluctustions in price or dealer’s margin or are securities included in a portfolio n which
& patiern of short - term trading exists,

Page - K0
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Amaortized cost

These are investments with fixed or determinsble poyments and fixed matrities which the
Bank has the intention and ability to hold il maturity.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

These are investments which do not fall under amortized cost and fair valoe thoragh profit
and loss calcgones.

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established
by regulations or market convention are recognised ot the trade date. Trade date is the date on
which the Bank commits 1o purchase or sell the investments.

Investments (other than fair value through profit and koss) are initially measured ot fair valoe
plus transaction cost associnled with the investment. Investments classified as fair value
through profit and loss are indtislly measured st {nir value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the profil and loss account.

Impairment of financial assels
Overview of the ECL principles

The adoption of [FRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Banl's loan loss impairment method
by replacing incurred loss approach with a forward-leoking ECL approach. From 01 January
2024, the Bank has been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and
olher debt financial assets nol beld st FVTPL, wogether with loan commitments and financial
gumraniee contracis, in this scction all refered o a3 CTinencial nsruments”.  Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment under [FRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset
(the lifetime expected credit Joss or LTECL),unless there has been no significant incrense in
credit risk since origination, in this case, the allowsnee is based on the 12 months®expected
credit loss {12mECL) as outlined below:

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life
of the financial instrument. The Bank considers an exposuns 1o have significantly mcreasad in
eredit risk when there is considerable deterioration in the internal rating grade for subject
borrower, The Bank alswo applies a secondary qualitative method for wriggering & wignificam
hﬂuhnﬂhﬂ&hm.ﬂﬁmbumﬁnﬁtuﬂtﬂm‘hﬂhyhﬂ:nﬂﬁi‘wh
account becoming forborme. Regardless of the change in credit grades, genemlly, the Bank
considers that there has been a significant increase in eredit risk when contractual payments
are more than 30 dsys past due. Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into
Euu:l.su‘clﬁu.aﬂmdm.n::nih;ﬁbﬂm
ge - 81



Stage I: When loans are first recognised, the Bank recognises an allowance based on
12mECLs. Stage | loans also include facilities where the crodit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Suge 2. The 12mECL is calculated as the
portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
finsncial instroment thet are possible within the 12 months after the reporting dase.
The Bank calculates the 12ZmECL allowsnce based on the expectation of a defaull
occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month
defsult probabilities are applied o a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected
LGD and discounted by an approximation 1o the original EIR. This calculation is
made for ench of the four scenarios, as explained above.

Stage 2: When a Joan has shown a significant increase in credit sk since origmstion, the
Bank records an allowance for the LTECLa, Stage 2 loans also include facilities,
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.
The mechanics are similar 10 those explained sbove, including the use of multiple
scenariog, but PDs and LGDy are estimated over the fifetime of the instrument, The
expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.

Swge 3: For loans considered credit-ionpaired, the Bank recognises the lifetime expected
credit losses for these loans, The Bank uses a Proability of Default as 100%

Calculation of ECLs

The Rank calculmes ECLs based on a three probability-weighted scenanios. The mechanics of
the ECL calculations for the Bank is outlined below and the key clements are, as follows:

a) Probability of Default: The Probability of Default is an estimate of the Nkelthood of
default over & given ime horizon A defsuli may only happen ai 8 ceriain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not defanlied.

b) Expousure st Default: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposare at o future
default date, taking info account expected changes in the exposure afier the reporting date,
including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise,
expected drowdowns on commined facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.
The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a
finencial instrument unless the Bank has the legnl right to call it earlier. The interest rate used
1o discount the ECLs is based on the effective interest rate that is expected to be charged over
the expected period of exposure w0 the facilities. In the absence of computation of the
effective interesi rate (st reporting date), the Bank uses an spproximation c.p. contractual
rile (st reporting date).

¢) Loss Given Default Model: Loss Given Default is a factor that determines the severity of
a loss, Le., which part of the Exposure at Default {EAD) results in a loss given a default event
ocourring. Not every defaull event leads 1o sctual |osses and if actual losses are incwrred, they
might differ greatly between different portfolios and different debtors.

Page- K2



When estimating the ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios (o base case, an upside, a
downside) Esch of these is asssocisted with different Loss Rates. When relevant, the
assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans are expected 1o be
recovered, including the probability that the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the
emount that might be received for selling the asset.

Significant Inerease in Credit Risk (SICR)

A SICR is assessed in the context of an increase in the risk of a defiult ocourring over the life
of the financial instrument compared 10 the risk of default expected at the time of initial
recognition. The Bank uses a number of qualitative and guantitative messures in nssessing
SICR including. inter ala, the deteniomation of Obligor Risk Ratings (ORR), significant
changes In the operating results or financial position of the bosrower, payments being past
due by 30 days or more, unavailability of financial mformation ete.

Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a mage of forward looking information as economic
mputs as mentioned below;

1) Corporate segments: GDP,CPL, Interest Rate, Import, Export, and Implied PPP con. Rate.

1) Remil segments: GDP, CPL Unemployment, Private Consumption (real % change pa),
Domestic credit growth, and Lending interest.

Page - K3
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4553 Operational risk

The Bank operates in a controlled manner and operational risk is generally managed
effectively. With the evolution of operation risk management info a separale distinet
discipline, the Bank's strafegy is to further strengthen risk management system along new
industry standards.

The Bank's ORM fremework includes Risk Control Sell-Assessmeni (RCSA), Key Risk
Indicators (KRIs), Loss Data Collection (LDC), Operational Risk Events Management, and
Operntional Risk Reporting. The ORM Unit engnges with Bank's business / support units and
regularly collshorntes in determining and reviewing the risks, and assessment of residual risk
leading to improved quality of control infrastructure and strengihening of the processes (sub
processes) & management information,

The Bank uses Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for regulatory capital &t risk caleulation for
operational risk. Under BIA, the capital charge for operational risk iilﬂﬂtﬂ]ﬁﬁﬂhﬂhr
average positive annual gross incame of the Bank over the past three years. Figures of capital
charge of operation risk for the year is Re. 254.23 million (2023: Rs. 253.49 million).

45531 Operational risk - Disclasures Basel 11 specific

BASEL Il Basic indicaor approach is used for calculating Capital Adequacy for Operaticnal
Risk.

4554 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank will not be able to ralse funds to meet its commitments.

Governance of Liguidity risk management
ALCO mannges the liquidity position on a continuois bagis.

Liquidity and related risks are managed through standardized processes established in the
Bank. The mansgement of liquidity risk within the Bank is undertsken within limits and other
parameters set by BoD. The Bank's treasury function has the primary responsibility for
assessing, monitoring and managing the Bank's liquidity and funding strategy while overall
compliance is monitored and co-ordinated by the ALCO, Board and senior management are
apprised of Bank’s liquidity profile 10 ensure proactive liquidity management. Treasury
Middie Office being part of the Risk Management Division is responsible for the independent
identification, monltoring and analysis of intrinsic risks of treasury business. The Bank has
in place duly spproved Treasury investment policy and sirstegy along with liquidity nsk
tolerance / sppetite levels. These are communicated ot various levels 50 as 1o ensure effective
liquidity management for the Bank.




Funding Strategy

The Bank's liquidity model is based on “self-reliance™ with an extensive branch network 1o
diversify the Bank deposit bage. Further, the Bank can also generate liquidity from Interbank
market against government securities to fund (ta short term requirement, if any, The Bank as
a policy invests significantly in highly liquid government sscurities that can be readhly
converted into cash 10 meet unforeseen liquidity requirements, besides yiclding attractive
returnd. Furthermore, long term loans are genernlly kept ot an amournt lower than the Bank's
capital / reserves.

Liquidity Risk Mitigation techniques

Vanous tools and techmiques are used 10 measure and monitor the possible liquidity risk.
These include monitoring of different liguidity ratios which are monitored regularly againn
approved triggers and communicated to senior management and ALCO. Further, Bank also
prepares the maturity profile of assets and linbilities 10 monitor the hiquidity gaps over
different time buckets. The Bank also enswes thei ststutory cash and liguidity requirements
nre matntained st all times.

Liguidity Stress Testing

As per SBF BSD Circalar No. 1 of 2012, Liquidity stress testing is being conducted under
well-defined arets wenanos. Results of came are eccalnted ol the semor level 80 a5 10 enabis
the senlor management to take proactive actions 1o avosd liquidity crunch for the Bank,

Contingency Funding Plan

Contingency Funding Man (CFI) s a part of liquidity mansgement framework of the Bank
which defines and identifies the fsctors that can instigate a Liquidity crisis and the sctions 1o
be taken to manage the crisis. The Bank has a comprehensive Iiquidity contingency funding
plan in place, which highlights liquidity management strategy 10 be followed under stress
conditions, Contingency Evenl Management paramelers snd respondibilitics we also
incorporated in order 10 tackle the liquidity crisis. Moreover, CFP highlights possible funding
sources focusing on self-reliance, in case of a liquidity erisis.
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A PATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

Thess financial statcments were mathocised for ssue on 13 MAR 2025 by the Board of
Derectors of the Hank.
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